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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Morehead State University's (the University) Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of its financial 

condition provides an overview of the financial performance of the University for the year ended June 30, 

2014. Management has prepared this d iscussion, along w ith the financial statements and related footnotes, to 

provide summary financial information. MD&A should be read in conjunction w ith the accompanying 

financial statements and footnotes. 

Financial Highlights 

• The financial statements indicate that the University's financial position remained strong at June 30, 

2014, as reflected in the Statement of Net Position. 

• Financial operations were conducted in accordance with the approved budget plan, which continues 

to demonstrate the University's commitment to advance the University's mission by focusing on the 

goals and objectives as defined in the ASPIRE 2010-2014 Strategic Plan. 

• Total assets were $266 million versus $264 million at June 30, 2013. The increase is primarily related to 

an increase in net capital assets of $2.4 million, as a result of the ongoing renovation of housing 

facilities as identified in the Comprehensive Housing Master Plan and as a result of expenditures 

related to the Guaranteed Energy Savings performance contract. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

• Total liabilities increased $7 million to $88 mmion versus $81 million at June 30, 2013. The increase is 

primarily related to the issuance of $9.5 million in General Receipts bonds to fund renovations of 

housing facilities as part of the Comprehensive Housing Master Plan. This increase was offset by $4.9 

million in debt service payments. 

• Total net position was $178 million at June 30, 2014 and $184 million at June 30, 2013. The decrease is 

primarily the result of increases in operating expenses, which included increases in fixed costs such as 

utilities, scholarship commitments, employee retirement benefits, and investments in employees with 

the implementation of the new employee compensation model. 

Using the Annual Report 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements, prepared in accordance with Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's 

Discussion and Analysis - for Public Colleges and Universities. These financial statements focus on the financial 

condition of the University, the results of operations, and cash flows of the University as a whole. 

One of the most important questions asked about University finances is whether the University is better off as 

a result of the year's activities. The information needed to answer this question can be found in: 

• Statement of Net Position, 

• the Statement of Revenues, 

Expenses and Changes in 

Net Position and 

• the Statement of Cash Flows. 

These statements present financial 

information of the University in a 

format similar to that used by 

corporations and present a long-term 

view of the University's finances. To 

get a full understanding of the 

University's financial condition these statements should be reviewed as a whole and not individually. Further 

important information can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements, beginning on page 23 of the Financial 
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MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Statements. The Notes to the Financial Statements contain policies, explanations and schedules that should be 

reviewed before, during and after reviewing the Financial Statements in order to get a complete understanding. 

The Statement of Net Position 

1his statement includes all assets and liabilities. It is prepared under the accrual basis of accounting, whereby 

revenues and assets are recognized when the service is provided and expenses and liabilities are recognized 

when others provide the service, regardless of when cash is exchanged. The University's net position (the 

difference between assets and liabilities) are one indicator of the University's financial health. Over time, 

increases or decreases in net position can indicate improvement or erosion of the University's financial health. 

Changes in net position should be considered in conjunction with non-financial factors sud1 as enrollment levels 

and conditions of facilities. 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

1his statement presents the revenues earned and expenses incurred during the year. Activities are reported as 

either operating or non-operating. GASB 35 requires state appropriations and gifts to be classified as non­

operating revenues. Accordingly, the University will generate a net operating loss prior to the addition of 

non-operating revenues. The utilization of long-lived assets, referred to as capital assets, is reflected in the 

financial statements as depreciation, which amortizes the 

cost of an asset over its expected useful life. 

The Statement of Cash Flows 

1his statement presents information related to cash inflows 

and outflows, summarized by operating, non-capital 

financing, capital financing and investing activities. An 

important factor to consider when evaluating financial 

viability is the University's ability to meet financial 

obligations as they mature. 

Reporting Entity 

Morehead State University is a component unit of the 

Commonwealth of Kentucky. 
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Assets 

Cu rren t assets 

Capital assets 

Other noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Cu rrent liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabili ties 

Net Position 

Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted, expendable 

Restricted, nonexpendable 

Unrestricted 

Total net position 

MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Condensed Financia l Informa tion 
Statement of Net Position (in thousands) 

$ 

2014 

45,602 

202,974 

17,581 

266.157 

18,565 

69,336 

87,901 

132,585 

6,452 

12,873 

26,346 

$128,256 

$ 

2013 

46,452 

200,575 

17,255 

264,282 

16,499 

64.144 

80,643 

135,758 

6,887 

12,744 

28,250 

$183,632 

As of June 30, 2014, the University's total assets were approximately $266 million versus $264 mill ion at 

June 30, 2013. Investment in capital assets, net of depreciation, represented the University's largest 

asset, totaling $203 million compared to $201 mi ll ion at June 30, 2013. Cash and investments, totaling 

$47 million at Ju ne 30, 2014 and $45 mill ion at June 30, 2013, were the University's next largest asset. 

Total assets increased by $2 million duri ng the year ended June 30, 2014. The principal areas of change 

were: 

• Cash and cash equivalents increased approximately $1.6 mill ion. 

• Accou nts, grants and loans receivable, net decreased approximately $2.3 million. 

• Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, increased approximately $2.4 million. 
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Liabilities 

At June 30, 2014, the University's liabilities were approximately $88 million versus $81 million in the 

previous year. Bonds, notes payable and capital lease obligations fo r capital assets represented $70 

million versus $65 million at June 30, 2013. To tal liabilities increased by $7.3 million during the year 

ended June 30, 2014. This increase was primarily due to the following: 

• Accounts payable and accrued liabilities increased $2.2 million due to increases in accrued 

salaries, retirement and payroll tax contributions, and accrued sick leave. 

• Bonds, notes and capital lease obligations increased $5.5 million due to the issuance of $9.5 

million in Genera l Receipts bonds to fund renovations of housing facilities as part of the 

Comprehensive Hous ing Master Plan and due to an increase of $875k in capital lease obligations. 

This increase was offset by $4.9 million in debt service payments. 

Net Position 

Net position at June 30, 2014 totaled approximately $178 mill ion compared to $184 mill ion at June 30, 

2013. Net investment in capital assets, totaled $133 million versus $136 mill ion at June 30, 2013. Restricted 

net position totaled $19 million compared to $20 million at June 30, 2013. Unrestricted net position totaled 

$26 million versus $28 million at June 30, 2013. Total net pos ition decreased by $5 million during the year 

ended June 30, 2014. This decrease was primarily due to budgeted increases in operating expenses for 

strategic investments in emp loyees, facil ity renovations, and scholarship commitments. 

Net Investment i11 Capital Assets 

Net investment in capital assets includes capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding 

principal balances o f debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. 

Net investment in capital assets d ecreased by $3 million. This decrease is related to the amount of 

unspent bond proceeds at June 30, 2014. 

Restricted Net Position 

Restricted net position is subject to stipulations made by entities external to the University that govern 

the use of these funds. Restricted net position decreased by $306 thousand. Restricted net position was 

increased by the issuance of the 2013 Series A bonds, but was decreased by expenditures related to 

various construction projects . 
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MOREHEAD ST ATE UNIVERSITY 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Unrestricted Net Position 

Unrestricted net position decreased by $1.9 million from the previous year to $26 million. Unrestricted 

ne t position is not subject to externally imposed restrictions. However, substantially all of the 

unrestricted net position balance has been allocated for the support of academic programs and other 

initiatives, the completion of capital projects, or working capital requirements. The allocation of 

unrestricted ne t position as of June 30, 2014 is as follows: 

Allocation of Unrestricted Net Position (in thousands) 

2014 2013 

Working capital $ 5,104 $ 7,578 
Allocated project funds 1,925 1,215 
Capital construction 6,255 1,825 
Operating budgets 5,593 5,871 
Accreditations 56 32 
Internal reserves 7,413 11,729 

Unrestricted net assets $ 26.346 $ 28.25Q 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (in thousands) 

Operating Revenues 

Student tuition and fees, net 

Federal grants and contracts 

State and local grants and contracts 

Nongovernmental grants and contracts 

Sales and services of educational activities 

Auxiliary enterprises 

Other operating revenues 

Total operating revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Educational and general 

Auxiliary enterprises 

Depreciation 

Other operating loss (gain) 

Total operating expenses 

Operating loss 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Grants and contracts 

State appropriations 

Investment income, net 

Interest on capital assets - debt related 

Net nonoperating revenues 

(Loss) income before capital appropriations 

Capital appropriations 

(Decrease) increase in net position 

Net position, beginning of year 

Net position, end of year 

7 

2014 

$ 38,075 

12,299 

1,283 

660 

2,150 

19,297 

4474 

78,238 

126,308 

14,058 

9,789 

391 

150,546 

{72,308) 

25,493 

42,124 

199 

{3,433) 

64,383 

(7,925) 

2,542 

(5,383) 

183,639 

$128.256 

2013 

$ 40,517 

12,484 

1,393 

636 

2,458 

17,646 

4 589 

79.723 

119,576 

12,526 
' 

9,646 

{628) 

141,120 

{61,397) 

23,441 

42,162 

69 

{2,654) 

63,018 

1,621 

3,410 

5,031 

178,608 

$183.632 



MOREHEAD ST ATE UNIVERSITY 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Reve11ues 

Total operating revenues were approximately $78 million for the year ended June 30, 2014 and 

approximately $80 million for the year ended June 30, 2013. The most significant sources of operating 

revenue for the University are net student tuition and fees $38 million, federal grants and contracts $12 

million, and auxiliary enterprises revenue $19 million. The $2 million decrease in operating revenues is 

the result of the following: 

• Net student tuition and fees decreased $2.4 million. This was primarily due to the increase in 

financial aid scholarship allowances. Scholarship allowances were $32.4 million at June 30, 2014 

as compared to $29.7 million for the year ended June 30, 2013. 

• Grants and contracts decreased $270 thousand. External grants and contracts can vary 

significantly from one fiscal year to the next given variations in new awards and variations in the 

award period g iven with each award. 

• Auxiliary enterprises increased $1.6 million due to a 4% increase in housing rates and an increase 

in the number of students living on campus. 

Expenses 

Operating expenses totaled approximately $150 million compared to $141 million at June 30, 2013. Of this 

amount, approximately $126 million was used for educational and general expenses related to functions 

such as instruction, research, public service, academic support, student serv ices and operation and 

maintenance of plant. The $9 million increase is primarily the result of increases in utilities, scholarship 

commitments, strategic investments in plant, employee retirement benefits, and investments in 

employees w ith the implementation of the new employee compensation model. The University also 

established the voluntary buyout program to help adjust financial and human resources to meet the 

University's strategic plan goals and state mandates for recruiting, retention, and growth of the 

University. 

• Total personnel costs increased $4.7 million, which included the implementation of the new 

employee compensation model, increased retirement con tribu tions to KERS and KTRS, voluntary 

buyout program expenses, and expenses related to the required accrued sick leave liability. 

• Strategic investment in plant renovations and construction projects increased $1.2 million. 

• Utilities expend itures increased $834 thousand. 
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Cash Flow s 

Another way to assess the financial health of an institution is to look at the Statement of Cash Flows. The 

primary purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows is to provide information about the cash receipts and 

cash payments made by the University during the period. The Statement of Cash Flows also helps 

financial statement readers assess: 

• the University's ability to generate future net cash fl ows, 

• the University's ability to meet obligations as they become d ue, and 

• the University's need for external financing. 

Cash Provided By (Used In): 

Statement of Cash Flows (In Thousands) 
Year ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 

2014 2013 

Operating activities 

Noncapital financing activities 

$ (58,285) $ (54,264) 

67,617 65,603 

Capital and related financing activities 

Investing activities 

(7,805) (19,950) 

100 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 1,627 

Cash, beginning of the year 31.478 

Cash, end of the year $ 33.lQ5 $ 

Major sources of funds included in operating activities are student tuition and fees, $39 million versus $40 

million in the previous year and grants and contracts, $13 million compared to $14 million in the previous 

year. The largest cash payments for operating activities were made to suppliers $75 million versus $71 

mill ion in the previous year and to emp loyees in the amount of $63 m illion compared to $61 million in 

the previous year. 

The largest cash receipt in noncapital financing activities 

was the operating appropriation from the 

Commonwealth of Kentucky of $42 million for both June 

30, 2014 and 2013 fiscal years . Cash used by capital and 

related financing activities was primarily expended on 

the construction and acquisition of capital assets. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation (but not of related debt), tota led approximately $203 

million at June 30, 2014 versus $200.6 million at June 30, 2013. This represents a net increase of $2.4 

million from June 30, 2013. Significant changes to capital assets during fisca l 2013 - 2014 included: 

Debt 

Buildings and land improvements 
Library additions, equipment and vehicles 
Net change in construction in progress 
Increase in accumulated depreciation, net 

$ 18.0 million 
(0.7) million 
(7.4) million 
(7.5) million 

At year-end, the University had $70 million in outstanding debt versus $65 million in the previous year. 

This includes $58.6 million in bonds payable compared to $52.9 million at June 30, 2013. In addition, the 

University had capital lease obligations of $11.8 million compared to $12.0 million in the previous year. 

The University's debt is summarized by type of debt instrument as follows (in thousands): 

General Receipts bonds 

Consolidated Educational bu ildings revenue bonds 

Capital lease obligations 

2014 

$ 58,120 

495 

11.774 

$ ZQ.382 

June 30, 
2013 

$51,845 

1,080 

11,993 

$64,218 

The University issued $9.5 million in General Receipt's bonds in September 2013 for the renovation of 

housing facilities as part of the Comprehensive Housing Master Plan a nd issued $875 thousand in 

additional capital lease obligations. This was offset by $4.9 million in debt service payments. 
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FACTORS IMPACTING FUTURE PERIODS 

The following are known facts and circumstances that could affect future financial results: 

• The University's Board of Regents has approved an operating budget for the fiscal year ending 

June 30, 2015 totaling $153.2 million. 

• The 2014-15 budget includes a 4.9% increase in student tuition and fees and a 5.1% increase in 

residence hall rates. 

• Beginning in fiscal year 2014-15, GASB Statement No. 68 requires state and local government 

employers participating in a cost-sharing defined benefi t plan to recognize their proportionate 

share of the long term obligation for pension benefits as a liabili ty. As a participating employer in 

the Kentucky Teachers Retirement System (KTRS) and Kentucky Employees Retirement System 

(KERS), the University will be requ ired to report a net pension liability. 

• On July 24, 2014 the University issued $27.5 million in General Receipts Refunding Bonds to 

refund $495 thousand in Consolidated Education Building Revenue Bonds and $29.2 million in 

General Receipts Build America Bonds. 

• The University will continue the Comprehensive Housing Master Plan by issuing $30.7 million in 

General Receipts Bonds during the 2014-15 fiscal year to construct a new residence hall on the 

main campus and on the University Farm. 

• Scheduled to open in August 2015, the Craft Academy for Excellence in Science and Mathematics 

is a dual-credit residential high school for academically exceptional Kentucky s tudents. The 

academy w ill be housed on the campus of Morehead State University and w ill initially enroll 60 

high school juniors in 2015. The enrollment will increase by 60 students in August 2016 with the 

addition of a new junior class. 

• The University will continue the initiatives of the University Technology Plan to improve campus 

network infrastructure through short term financi ng. 
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A" DORTON 
DEAN DORTON ALLEN FORD, PLLC 

Report of Independent Auditors 

Members of the Board of Regents and 
Dr. Wayne D. Andrews, President 
Morehead State University 
Morehead, Kentucky 

Secretary of Finance and 
Administration Cabinet of the 
Commonwealth of Kentucky 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and discretely 
presented component unit of Morehead State University (the University) as of and for the years ended 
June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Universi ty's basic financial statements as lis ted in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparntion and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, a nd maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free fro m material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial aud its contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain aud it evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the audi tor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fa ir presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecti veness of 
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 

106 W. Vine Street, Suite 600 Lexington, KY 40S07 859-255-2341 phone 859-255-0125 fax 
500 W. Jefferson Street, Suite 1400 Louisville, KY 40202 502-589-6050 phone 502-581-9016 fax dorton .com 



Board of Regents 
Report of Independent Auditors 

the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overa ll presentation of the financia l statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and a ppropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-typ e activities and the d iscretely presented component unit 
of Morehead State University as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the changes in its financial position and its 
cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 1-11 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Sud1 
information, although not a part of the basic financial s tatements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in a n appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United Sta tes of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the in formation for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic fi nancial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opin ion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an op1111on on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise Morehead State University's basic financial statements. The supplemental 
information contained on pages 55 and 56 and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, on pages 
57 through 64, as required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, is presen ted for the purpose of additional analysis and is 
not a required part of the basic financia l statements. 

The supplemental information contained on pages 55 and 56 and the Schedule of Expenditu res of Federal 
Awards, on pages 57 through 64 is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underly ing accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial sta tements. 
Such information has been subjected to the audi ting procedu res appl ied in the audit of the basic financial 
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statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial s tatements or 
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplemental 
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Govemme11t Auditing Standards 

In accordance w ith Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 24, 
2014 on our consideration of Morehead State University's internal control over fina ncia l reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and comp liance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditi11g Standards in considering the University's internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

November 24, 2014 
Lexington, Kentucky 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Statements of Net Position 

June 30, 2014 and 2013 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts, grants and loans receivable, net 
Prepaid interest 
Inventories 
Other current assets 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Accounts, grants and loans receivable, net 
Investments 
Capi tal assets, net 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Net Position 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Unearned revenue 
Other current liabilities 
Bonds and capital lease obligations, 

current portion 
Total current liabilities 

Long-term liabilities: 
Bonds and capital lease obligations, 
noncurrent portion 

Advances from federal government for student loans 
Unearned revenue 

Total long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted: 

Expendable 
Nonexpendable 

Unrestricted 

Total net position 

See nccompn11yi11g 11otes. 

15 

$ 

2014 

33,105,168 
10,694,100 

1,671,286 
131,180 

45,601,734 

3,885,589 
13,695,872 

202,974,277 
220,555,738 

$ 266,157,472 

$ 9,188,183 
3,752,480 

774,011 

4,850,549 
18,565,223 

65,538,212 
3,507,148 

290,235 
69,335,595 

87,900,818 

132,585,516 

6,452,375 
12,872,770 
26,345,993 

$ 178.256.654 

$ 

2013 

31,478,329 
13,216,009 

102,192 
1,623,643 

31,928 
46,452,101 

3,658,181 
13,596,954 

200,574.796 
217,829.931 

$ 264,282,032 

$ 7,008,292 
4,060,378 

949,162 

4,481,040 
16,498,872 

60,437,551 
3,416,142 

290,235 
64,143,928 

80,642,800 

135,758,395 

6,887,238 
12,743,671 
28,249,928 

$ 183.639.232 



MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC. 

Statements of Financial Position 

June 30, 2014 and 2013 

Current assets: 
Cash 
Accrued interest receivable 
Accounts receivable 

Assets 

Current portion of pledges receivable 
Current portion of net investment in capital leases 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets : 
Investments, at fair value 
Cash surrender value - life insurance 
Property and equipment, net 
Pledges receivable, net of current portion 
Net investment in ca pital leases, net of current portion 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current liabilities: 

Current portion of annuities payable 
Due to Morehead State University 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term liabilities: 
Funds held in trust for Morehead State University 
Annuities payable, net of current portion 

Total long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See nccompnnying notes. 

16 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1,424,084 

2,752 
60,000 

1,726,224 
78,623 

3,291,683 

43,894,298 
107,228 
227,131 

3,739,012 
350,721 

48,318,390 

51.610,Q73 

215,448 
131,180 

346,628 

12,014,828 
1.019,312 

13,034,140 

13,380,768 

(1,515,236) 
20,525,078 
19,219,463 

38,229,305 

Sl.61Q,Q73 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2013 

737,396 

3,358 

870,620 
74 018 

1,685,392 

38,419,822 

119,920 

209,319 
1,389,027 

429,344 

40567.432 

42,252,824 

201,948 

3L928 

233,876 

12,014,828 

L04L603 

13,056.431 

13,290,307 

(1,745,596) 

12,661,752 

18,046.361 

28,962,517 

$____42,252,824 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 

2014 2013 

Operating revenues: 

Student tuition and fees (net of scholarship 
allowances of $32,404,111 and $29,750,887) $ 38,074,620 $40,516,548 

Federal grants and contracts 12,299,433 12,483,560 

State and local grants and contracts 1,283,161 1,393,374 
Nongovernmental g rants and contracts 659,562 636,051 

Sales and services of educational activities 2,149,927 2,457,546 

Auxiliary enterprises: 
Residence halls (net of scholarship allowances 
of $165,826 and $253,768) 11,924,509 10,561,975 

Bookstore 5,102,910 4,922,585 

Other auxiliaries 2,269,904 2,161,837 

Other operating revenues 4,473,963 4,589,438 
Total operating revenues 78,237,989 79,722,914 

Operating expenses: 

Education and general: 
Instruction 46,025,933 44,203,014 
Research 1,559,471 2,241,288 
Public service 6,092,974 5,623,128 

Library 3,306,975 3,311,965 
Academic support 12,286,903 12,001,070 
Student services 16,964,312 15,973,516 
Institutional support 15,058,426 13,767,591 
Operation and maintenance of plant 10,704,103 8,642,717 
Depreciation 9,789,361 9,646,093 

Student aid 14,308,722 13,812,188 

Auxiliary enterprises: 
Residence halls 7,788,900 6,472,245 
Bookstore 4,426,705 4,224,767 
Other auxi liaries 1,842,351 1,828,854 

Other operating loss (gain) 391,025 (628,205} 

Total operating expenses 150,546,161 141,120,231 

Operating loss (72,308,172) (61,397,317) 
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MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, continued 

Years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 

2014 2013 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Grants and contracts 25,493,030 23,441,203 

State appropriations 42,123,780 42,162,425 

Investment income, net 199,212 68,618 
Interest on capital asset-related debt (3,433,019) (2,654,540) 

Net nonoperating revenues 64,383,003 63,017,706 

(Loss) income before capital appropriations (7,925,169) 1,620,389 

Capital appropriations 2,542,591 3,410,488 

(Decrease) increase in net position (5,382,578) 5,030,877 

Net position, beginning of year 183,639,232 178,608,355 

Net position, end of year UZ8,256.654 $ 183,632,232 

See accompanying notes. 
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MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC. 

Statements of Activities 

Year ended June 30, 2014 

Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total 

Revenues and other support: 

Contributions $ 697,554 $ 5,328,272 $ 1,173,102 $ 7,198,928 

Other revenue and gains: 

Investment income: 

Interest and dividend income, net 18,160 637,169 655,329 

Realized and unrealized gains 5,847 4,589,937 4,595,784 

In-kind contributed services 102,377 102,377 

Development activities 412,805 232,324 645,129 

Other income 56,292 31,681 87,973 

Annuities payable adjustment (142,457) (142,457) 

Net assets released from restrictions: 

Restrictions satis fied by payments 2,956,057 (2,956,057) 

Total revenues and other support 4,106,635 7,863,326 1,173,102 13,143,063 

Expenses: 

Program expenses: 

Contributions to Morehead State 

University for: 

Academic programs 1,965,410 1,965,410 

Athletics 181,295 181,295 

University support: 

Operations and materials 848,384 848,384 

Student financial aid 489,203 489,203 

Athletics 80,736 80,736 

Total program expenses 3,565,028 3,565,028 

General and adminis trative 283,930 283,930 

Fund raising 27,317 27,317 

Total expenses 3,876,275 3,876,275 

Change in net assets 230,360 7,863,326 1,173,102 9,266,788 

Net assets, beginning of year (1,745,596) 12,661,752 18,046,361 28,962,517 

Net assets, end of year $ (1,515,23..6). $ 20):i2S,0Z8 $_12,212,lli $-18,222,J0.5. 

See accompanying notes. 
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MOREHEAD ST A TE UN IVERSITY FOUN DATION, INC. 

S ta tem ents of Activ it ies 

Year ended June 30, 2013 

Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total 

Revenues and other support: 

Contributions $ 311,534 $ 1,148,778 $ 644,629 $ 2,104,941 

Other revenue and gains: 

Lnvestment income: 

Lnterest and dividend income, net 16,026 560,589 576,615 

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) 2,698 2,568,260 2,570,958 

Ln-kind contributed services 99,499 99,499 

Developmen t activities 431,368 294,245 725,613 

Other income 58,823 40,124 98,947 

Annui ties payable adjustment (134,870) (134,870) 

Net assets released from restrictions: 

Restrictions satisfied by payments 2,150,192 (2,150,192) 

Total revenues and other support 2,935,270 2,461,804 644,629 6,041,703 

Expenses: 

Program expenses: 

Contributions to Morehead State 

University for: 

Academic programs 1,148,462 1,148,462 

Athletics 202,287 202,287 

University support: 

Operations and materials 758,823 758,823 

Student financia l aid 506,177 506,177 

Athletics 111,490 111 490 

Total program expenses 2,727,239 2,727,239 

General and administrative 191,633 191,633 

Fund raising 34 775 34 775 

Total expenses 2,953,647 2,953,647 

Change in net assets (18,377) 2,461,804 644,629 3,088,056 

Net assets, beginning of year 

(1,727,219) 10,199,948 17,401,732 25,874,461 

Net assets, end of year $ (1,215,526) $~,~,152 ~.016,.3.61 $__2_8,.262,ill 

See acco111pnnying notes. 
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MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Tuition and fees 
Grants and contracts 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 
Loans issued to students 
Collection of loans issued to students 
Auxiliary enterprises: 

Residence halls 
Bookstore 
Other auxiliaries 

Sales and services of educational activities 
Other receipts 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 

Nonoperating grants and contracts 
State appropriations 

Net cash provided by noncapital fi nancing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 

Capital appropriations 
Purchase of capital assets 
Increase in advances from federal government for 

student loans 
Issuance of new bonds 
Principal paid on capital debt and leases 
Interest paid on capital debt and leases 

Net cash used in capital and related 

financing activi ties 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Interest received on investments, net 
Changes in investm ents, net 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equ ivalents 

Cash and cash equiva lents, beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 
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$ 

2014 

39,110,043 

13,071,614 
(75,420,807) 

(62,883,852) 
(765,078) 

587,242 

11,924,509 

5,280,598 
2,177,352 

2,050,675 

6,582,509 
(58,285,195) 

25,493,030 
42,123,780 

67,616,810 

2,542,591 
(11,703,010) 

91,006 

9,475,000 
(4,879,830) 

(3,330,827) 

(7,805,070) 

199,212 
(98,918) 
100,294 

1,626,839 

31,478,329 

$ 33,105!168 

$ 

2013 

40,367,719 

14,016,966 

(71,158,709) 

(61,448,678) 

(476,384) 

492,858 

10,561,975 

4,820,940 
2,134,835 

2,517,746 

3,906,568 

(54,264,164) 

23,441,203 

42,162,425 

65,603,628 

3,410,488 

(16,946,676) 

182,250 

(4,066,316) 

(2,529,892) 

(19,950,146) 

68,618 

154,359 

222,977 

(8,387,705) 

39,866,034 

Si 3U1Z8,322 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Statements of Cash Flows, continued 

Years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 

Reconciliation of operating loss 
to net cash used in operating activities: 
Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to 

net cash u sed in operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Loss (gain) on disposal of capital assets 
Bad debt expense 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Receivables, net 
Inventories 
Other current assets 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Unearned revenue 
Other current liabilities 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: 
Noncash capital and related financing transactions: 

Insurance proceeds receivable 

Capital lease item 

See accompanying notes. 
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$ 

$ 

2014 2013 

$ (72,308,172) $ (61,397,317) 

9,789,361 9,646,093 
389,168 (628,205) 

1,265,799 1,000,712 

1,028,702 (1,218,769) 
(47,643) (51,956) 
(99,252) 60,948 

2,179,891 (983,980) 
(307,898) (764,020) 
(175,151) 72330 

(58,285,125) $ (51,261.161) 

$ 983,281 

875,000 



MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Organization 

Morehead State University (the University) is a regional, coeducational, public institution of higher 

education offering general and liberal arts programs and pre-professional and professional training in 
education and various other fields at both the undergraduate and graduate levels. Located in 

Morehead, Kentucky, the University has provided educational service to the Commonwealth of 

Kentucky since 1887. 

Reporting Entity 

The University is a componen t unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky and is included in the general­
purpose financia l statements of the Commonwealth. The Morehead State University Foundation, Inc. 
(the Foundation) is a legally separate, tax-exempt organization supporting the University. The 
Foundation acts primarily as a fund-raising organization to supplement the resources that are 

available to the University in support of its programs. The Foundation's Board of Trustees is self­
perpetuating and consists of graduates and friends of the University. Although the University does 

not control the timing or amount of receipts from the Foundation, the majority of the resources the 

Foundation holds and invests are restricted by the donors to the activities of the University. Because 

these restricted resources held by the Foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the 

University, the Foundation is considered a component unit of the University and is discretely 

presented in the University's financia l statements. 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance w ith accounting principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting 

Standards Board (GASB). The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of 

accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and 

expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incurred. In accordance with GASB Statement 

No. 35, Basic Financial Staternents - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for Public Colleges and 
Universities (GASB No. 35) and subsequent standards issued by GASB, the University reports as a 

Business Type Activity (BTA). BTAs are those activities that are financed in whole or in part by fees 

charged to external parties for goods and services. 

GASB No. 35 establishes standards for external financial reporting for public colleges and universities 

and requires that resources be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into the following net 

position categories: 

• Net Investment in Capital Assets: Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
outstanding princ ipal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or 

improvement of those assets. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Basis of Presentation, continued 

• Restricted: 
Expendable- Net position whose use by the University is subject to externally 
imposed stipulations that can be fu lfilled by actions of the University pursuant to 
those stipulations or that expire by the passage of time. 

Nonexpenda/Jle- Net position subject to externally imposed stipulations that they be 
maintained permanently by the University. Such assets include the University's 
permanent endowment funds. 

• Unrestricted: Net position w hose use by the University is not subject to externally 
imposed stipulations. Unrestricted net assets may be designated for specific purposes by 
action of management or the Board of Regents or may otherwise be limited by 
contractual agreements with outside parties. 

The financial statement presentation required by GASB No. 35 is intended to provide a 

comprehensive, entity-wide perspective of the University's assets, liabilities, net posi tion, revenues, 
expenses, changes in net position and cash flows. 

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance 
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB n11d AJCPA Pronouncements, the University has elected to 
apply the provisions of all relevant pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(FASB) that do not conflict w ith or contradict GASB pronouncements. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

The allowance for doubtful accounts is established through a provision for doubtful accounts charged 
to expense. The allowance represents an amount which, in management's judgment, will be adequate 
to absorb probable losses on existing accounts that may become uncollectible. 

Inventories 

University store inventories representing approximately 57% and 55% of total inventories at June 30, 
2014 and 2013, respectively, are stated at the lower of cost (retai l inventory method) or market. The 
remainder of the inventories is stated at the lower of moving-average-cost or market. 

Investments 

The University values investments at fair value based on quoted market prices. 

24 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Investments. continued 

Investment income consists of interest and dividend income and the net change for the year in the fair 
value of investments carried at fair value. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets are stated at cost for purchased assets and at fair value at date of donation in the case of 
gifts. Expenditures which increase values or extend useful lives of the respective assets are capitalized. 
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Depreciation of assets is 
computed using the straight-line method over the assets estimated useful lives. The University 
capitalizes, but does not depreciate, works of art and historical treasures that are held for exhibition, 
education, research and public service. Estimated lives used for depreciation purposes are as follows: 

Classification 
Land improvements 
Buildings 
Building improvements 
Vehicles 
Equipment 
Library books 

Accrued Vacation Pay 

Estimated Life 
20 years 
50 years 
20 years 
5-9 years 
5-15 years 
10 years 

Accrued vacation pay is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the statement of net 
position and represents earned vacation available to employees at current compensation rates. 

Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue includes amounts received from grant and contract sponsors that have not yet been 
earned. Unearned revenue also includes tuition billed on or before June 30th for future terms. 

Advances from Federal Government for Student Loans 

Funds provided by the United States Government under the Federal Perkins Loan program are loaned 
to qualified students and may be reloaned after collections. These funds are ultimately refundable to 
the United States Government and, therefore, are recorded as a liabili ty in the accompanying financial 
statements. Federally funded financial aid programs are subject to special audits. Such audits could 

result in claims against the resources of the University. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

1. Organization and Su mmary of Significant Accounting Policies, con tinued 

Restricted Asset Spending Policv 

The University's policy is that restrictions on assets cannot be fu lfilled by the expenditure of 
unresh·icted funds for similar purposes. The determination on whether restricted or unrestricted funds 
are expended for a particular purpose is made on a case-by-case basis. Restricted funds remain 
restricted until spent for the intended purpose. 

Operating Activities 

The University defines operating activities, as reported on the statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position, as those that generally resul t from exchange transactions, such as payments 
received for providing goods and services and payments made for services and goods received. 
Nearly all of the University's expenses are from exchange transactions. Certain significant revenues 
relied upon for operations, such as state appropriations, g ifts and investment income, are recorded as 
non-operating revenues, in accordance w ith GASB No. 35. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial sta tements in conformity w ith accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements and the reported revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. 
Actual results cou ld differ from the estimated amounts. 

Income Taxes 

As a sta te institution of higher education, the income of the Un iversity is generally exempt from 
federal and state income taxes under Section 115(1) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended and a 
similar provision of state law. However, the University is subject to federal income tax on any 

unrelated business taxable income. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

In November 2013, the GASB approved Statement No. 71, Pension transition for contributions made 
subsequent to the measurement date - an a,nend111ent of GASB Statement No. 68. The objective of this 
Statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition provisions of Statement No. 
68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to amounts associated w ith 
contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or non-employer contributing 
entity to a defined benefit pension p lan after the measuremen t date of the government's beginning 
net pension liability. This Statement a mends paragraph 137 of Statement 68 to requ ire that, at 
transition, a government recognize a beginning deferred ou tflow of resources for its pension 
contributions, if any, made subsequent to the measurement date of the beginning net pension 
liability. Statement 68, as a mended, continues to requi re that beginni ng balances for other deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions be reported at transition 
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MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements, continued 

only if it is practical to determine all such amounts. The provisions of this Statement are required to 
be applied s imultaneously with the provisions of Statement 68. 

In June 2012, the GASB approved Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. 
This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and 
Local Governmental Employers and Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to 
governments that provide pensions through pension plans administers as trusts or similar 
arrangements that meet certain criteria. Statement 68 requires governments provid ing defined 
benefit pensions to recognize their long-term obligation for pension benefits as a liability for the first 
time, and to more comprehens ively and comparably measure the annual costs of pension benefits. 

Cost-sharing governmental employers w ill also be required to report a net pension liabili ty, pension 
expense and pension-related assets and liabilities based on their proportionate share of the collective 
amounts for all governments in the plan. All governments participating in the defined benefit 
pension plan would also have the following in their note disclosures: 

• Descriptions of the plan and benefits provided 
• Significant assumptions employed in the measurement of the net pension liability 
• Descriptions of benefit changes and changes in assumptions 
• Assumptions related to the discount rate and impact on the total pension liability of a 1 
percentage point increase and decrease in the d iscount rate 
• Net pension assets a nd liabilities 

The provisions of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014. The 
University is currently evaluating the effects of this Statement on its financial sta tements. 

Subsequent Events 

On July 24, 2014 the University issued $27.5 million in General Receipts Refunding Bonds to refund 
$495 thousand in Consolidated Education Building Revenue Bonds a nd $29.2 million in General 
Receipts Build America Bonds. 

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

The statement of net position classification "cash and cash equivalents" includes all read ily available 
sources of cash such as petty cash, demand deposits, deposits w ith the Commonwealth of Kentucky, 
certificates of deposit and temporary investments in marketable securities with original maturities less 

than three months. 

The state treasurer requires that all state funds be insured by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
(FDIC), collateralized by secu rities held by the cognizant Federal Reserve Bank or invested in U.S. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments, continued 

Government obligations. The University's deposits with the state treasurer are pooled w ith funds of 
other state agencies and then, in accordance with statutory limitations, placed in financial institutions 
or invested as the state treasurer may determine, in the state's name. 

The University requires that balances on deposit with financial institutions be insured by FDIC or 
collateralized by securities held by the cognizant Federal Reserve Bank, in the University's name. 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank fa ilure, the University's 
deposits may not be returned to the University. As a means of limiting its exposure to losses from 
custodial credit risk, the University's deposits and investments are held by the state h·easurer, 
collateralized by securities in the University's name, insured by the FDIC or in the University's name. 

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the University had petty cash funds totaling $44,815 and deposits as 
reflected by bank balances as follows: 

Insured, commercial banks 
Uninsured, commercial banks; collateral held by pledging 

institution's agent in the University's name 
Maintained by Commonwealth of Kentucky 

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, investments consisted of: 

Insured and registered, with securities held by the 
counterparty or by its trust department or agent, 
in the University's name: 

Money market funds - restricted for capital purposes 

Equity mutual funds 

Certificate of deposit 
Res tricted assets held by the Morehead State University 

Foundation, Inc. 

Total investments 

$ 

_$. 

$ 

$ 

2014 2013 

259,827 $ 259,822 

14,375,642 13,687,362 

18,424,884 17,486,330 

33,Q6Q,.353 $ 31,433,514 

2014 2013 

823,102 $ 853,282 
746,420 617,989 

1,569,522 1,471,271 

111,522 110,855 

12,014,828 12,014,828 

13,625,872 $ ] 3,526,254 

Restricted investments for capital purposes are comprised of amounts invested for sinking fu nd and 
debt service reserves. The University may legally invest in direct obligations of and other obligations 
guaranteed as to principal by the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies and instrumentalities and in bank 
repurchase agreements. It may also invest to a limited extent in equity securities. 
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MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments, continued 

University investments held by the Foundation are comprised of the Regional University Excellence 
Trust Fund endowment and other similar endowments (see Note 13). Assets held by the 
Foundation are invested primarily i_n an investment pool managed by the Foundation and are 
carried at fair value. 

The assets in the Foundation investment pool at June 30, 2014 and 2013, are invested as follows: 

Percentage of pool invested in: 
Registered investment companies fixed income funds 

Registered investment companies equ ity fund 
Registered investment companies alternative investments 

Interest Rate Risk 

2014 2013 

22% 25% 
42% 39% 
36% 36% 

100% 100% 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 

investment. The University does not have a formal policy to specifically limit investment maturities as 
a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's 
investment in a single issuer. The University does not have a formal policy for concenh·ation of credit 

risk. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, 
the University will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in 
the possession of an outside party. The University does not have a formal policy for custodial credit 

risk. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

3. Accounts, Grants and Loans Receivable 

Accounts, grants and loans receivable consist of the following as of June 30: 

Student tuition and fees 

Laptop lease 

Financing and interest 

Insurance claim receivable 

Student loans 

Grants and contracts 

Auxiliary enterprises 

Other 

Allowance for doubtful accounts 

Current portion 

Noncurrent portion 

30 

2014 

$4,636,345 

119,300 

672,200 

3,970,243 

6,633,566 

290,476 

295,380 

16,617,510 

(2,037,821) 

14,579,689 

(10,694,100) 

$. 3,885,582 

2013 

$5,606,109 

356,700 

1,788,498 

983,281 

3,738,031 

5,549,520 

378,672 

606,913 

19,007,724 

(2,133,534) 

16,874,190 

(13,216,009) 

$ 3.658,18] 



MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

4. Capital Assets, Net 

Capital assets as of June 30, 2014, are summarized as follows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance 

Land and improvements $ 20,052,861 $ 2,569,508 $ 650 $ 22,621,719 

Buildings 259,286,561 15,456,778 4,593 274,738,746 

Library books 25,955,517 749,564 26,705,081 

Vehicles 2,065,903 52,582 100,455 2,018,030 

Equipment and livestock 24,948,845 1,169,311 2,618,377 23,499,779 

Data tel 4,203,490 1,290 4,202,200 

Art collection 962,775 17,350 1,970 978,155 

Construction in progress 14,152,946 9,019,709 16,456,792 6,715,863 

351,628,898 29,034,802 19,184,127 361,479,573 

Accumulated Deweciation 

Land improvements 7,800,853 550,940 650 8,351,143 

Buildings 100,015,775 6,040,970 1,582 106,055,163 

Library books 20,754,975 1,004,665 21,759,640 

Vehicles 1,747,246 126,191 100,455 1,772,982 

Equipment and livestock 16,535,253 2,065,326 2,234,190 16,366,389 

Data tel 4,200,000 1,269 1290 4,199,979 

151,054,102 9,789,361 2,338,167 158,505,296 

Capital assets, net $ 200.574.796 $ 12,245.441 $ 16,845,260 $202,271,277 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

4. Capital Assets, N et, continued 

Capital assets as of June 30, 2013, are summarized as follows: 

Beginning Ending 

Balance Additions Reductions Balance 

Land and improvements $ 20,012,861 $ 40,000 $ $ 20,052,861 

Buildings 251,087,661 8,738,820 539,920 259,286,561 

Library books 24,914,943 1,040,574 25,955,517 

Veh icles 1,991,264 155,348 80,709 2,065,903 

Equipment and livestock 25,339,359 1,459,450 1,849,964 24,948,845 

Data tel 4,203,490 4,203,490 

Art collection 885,555 77,220 962,775 

Construction in progress 8,717,682 14,177,579 8,742,315 14,152,946 

337,152,815 25,688,991 11,212,908 351,628,898 

Accumulated De12reciation 

Land improvements 7,279,558 521,295 7,800,853 

Buildings 94,894,733 5,608,396 487,354 100,015,775 

Library books 19,736,352 1,018,623 20,754,975 

Vehicles 1,719,477 108,478 80,709 1,747,246 

Data te l 15,702,848 2,379,859 1,547,454 16,535,253 

Equipment and livestock 4,190,558 9 442 4,200,000 

143,523,526 9,646,093 2,115,517 151,054,102 

Capital assets, net Si..123,622,282 $ 16,Q42,828 $ 2,Q2Z.321 $ 2QQ,5Z4.Z26 
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MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

5. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities as of June 30, are as follows: 

Payable to vendors and contractors $ 

Accrued vacation 

Accrued sick leave liability 

Accrued salaries and other liabilities 

6. Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-term liabi lities at June 30, 2014, are summarized as fo llows: 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions 

Consolidated Educational 
Building Revenue Bonds S 1,080,000 s s 585,000 

General Receipts Bonds 51,845,000 9,475,000 3,200,000 

Capital lease obligations 2,322,464 875,000 691,574 

Energy Savings Capi tal Lease 9,671,127 403,256 

Total bonds, notes and 
capital lease obligations 64,918,591 10,350,000 4,879,830 

Federal refundable grants 3,416,142 91,006 

Total long-term liabilities S---68,aJ;L:Z:13 Ll,0,441,006 S....M,Z2.8-3.Q 

Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2013, are summarized as follows: 

Consolidated Educational 
Build ing Revenue Bonds 

General Receipts Bonds 

Capital lease obligations 

Energy Savings Capital Lease 

Total bonds, notes and 
capital lease obliga tions 

Federal refundable grants 

Total long-term liabilities 

Beginning 
Balance 

$ 1,650,000 

54,695,000 

2,968,780 

9.671.127 

68,984,907 

3,233,892 

$__22,218222 

Additions Reductions 

$ $ 570,000 

2,850,000 

646,316 

4,066,316 

182,250 

$_lli2,2SQ $ 4.066.316 
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2014 

1,071,574 

2,258,269 

784,477 

5,073,863 

$ 2J88,183 

Ending 
Balance 

S 495,000 

58,120,000 

2,505,890 

9,267,871 

70,388,761 

3,507,148 

$_23,8.25,202 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 1,080,000 

51,845,000 

2,322,464 

9,671,127 

64,918,591 

3,416,142 

$---68,33!1.23.3 

2013 

$431,453 

2,235,768 

4,341,071 

$ Z,QQ8,222 

Current 
Portion 

s 40,000 

3,300,000 

774,818 

735,731 

4,850,549 

5-....1,65!),~ 

Current 
Portion 

$ 585,000 

2,855,000 

637,784 

403,256 

4,481,040 

$ 4 4.fil,!MQ 

long-term 
Portion 

S 455,000 

54,820,000 

1,731,072 

8.532,140 

65,538,212 

3,507,148 

569Q1S,3.6!) 

Long-tenn 
Portion 

S 495,000 

48,990,000 

1,684,680 

9,267,871 

60,437,551 

3,416,142 

$_63,&3,6.93 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

6. Long-Term Liabilities, continued 

The following is a summary of bonds and capital lease obligations at June 30: 

2.00 - 3.625% Consolidated Educational Building Revenue Bonds, Series M 
repayable in semi-annual installments with the final insta llment due May, 

2024 

4.00% General Receipts Bonds, 2007 Series A, repayable in semi-annual 
installments with the final installment due November, 2027 

3.00 - 3.80% General Receipts Bonds, 2008 Series A, payable in semi-annual 
installments with the final installment due November, 2022 

2.00 - 6.00% General Receipts Bonds, 2009 Taxable Series A, repayable in semi­
annual installments with the fi nal installment due November, 2028 

1.27 - 5.75% General Receipts Bonds, 2010 Taxable Series A, repayable in semi­
annual installments with the final installment due November, 2029 

2.00-4.125% General Receipts Bonds, 2011 Series A Improvement Bonds, 
repayable in semi-annual installments with the final installment due 
November, 2030 

2.00-3.625% General Receipts Bonds, 2012 Series A Tax Exempt Bonds, 
repayable in semi-annual installments beginning in the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2014, with the final installment due November, 2031 

1.00-4.375% General Receipts Bonds, 2013 Series A Tax Exempt Bonds, 
repayable in semi-annual installments beginning in the fiscal year ending 
June 30,2014, with the fina l installment due April, 2033 

5.00% Capital lease obligation with the Foundation, repayable in monthly 
installments with the final installment due February, 2019 

9.40% Capital lease obligation with the Foundation, repayable in monthly 
installments with the final installmen t due March, 2023 

4.19% Capital lease obligation with a finance corporation in semi-annual 
payments with final insta llment due October, 2019 

3.58% Capital lease obligation w ith a finance corporation in semi-annual 
payments with final installment due June, 2015 

4.47% Capital lease obligation with the Foundation, repayable in monthly 
installments with the final in stallment d ue August, 2015 

2.65% Capital lease obligation w ith JP Morgan/Chase, repayable in quarterly 
installments, with the fina l installment due June, 2025 

4.50% Capital lease obligation for land acquisition, repayable in monthly 
installments with the final installment due December, 2020 
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2014 

$ 495,000 

4,340,000 

5,980,000 

24,125,000 

5,030,000 

4,665,000 

4,850,000 

9,130,000 

78,637 

304,690 

803,158 

452,179 

46,017 

9,267,871 

821,209 

5..20,3.8.8,261 

2013 

$ 1,080,000 

4,570,000 

6,695,000 

25,360,000 

5,280,000 

4,880,000 

5,060,000 

93,235 

326,528 

930,508 

888,594 

83,599 

9,671,127 



MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statemen ts, continued 

6. Long-Term Liabilities, con tinu ed 

In order to retire the revenue bonds, the University is required to make deposits to sinking fund s in 
annual amounts sufficient to meet the principal and interest payments due within the next twelve 

months. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, a ll reserve requirements have been fully funded ($64,781 and 

$632,587, respectively). The revenue bonds are subject to several no n-financial covenants, all of 

which management has asserted were met as of June 30, 2014 and 2013. 

The Consolidated Educational Building Revenue Bonds are collate ral ized by various build ings. The 

revenues derived from s tudent reg istration fees are pledged as collateral on the Consolidated 

Educatio nal Bui lding Revenue Bond issues. 

The capital leases consis t of leases of real estate and equipment. The leased equipment includes items 

related to an energy savings project and a new computer system. 

The following equipment is held under capital lease obligations at June 30: 

Real estate and equipment 

Less: accumulated depreciation 

2014 

$ 17,745,334 

( 5,166,011) 

$. 12.579.323. 

2013 

$ 7,722,742 

( 4,794,578) 

$. 2.928.164 

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum payments required for the capital lease 

obligations as of June 30, 2014: 

Year ending June 30, 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

Thereafte r 

Total m in imum lease payments 

Less: amounts representing inte rest 

Present value of minimum lease payments 

35 

$ 1,860,880 

1,362,729 

1,355,969 

1,355,969 

1,349,660 

6,335,502 

13,620,709 

(1,846,948) 

$. 11.773.761 



MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

6. Long-Term Liabilities, continued 

7. 

The principal and interest repayment requirements relating to the outstanding bonds at June 30, 2014, 

are as follows: 

Principal Interest Total 

Year ending June 30, 

2015 3,340,000 2,494,851 5,834,851 

2016 3,430,000 2,386,305 5,816,305 

2017 3,520,000 2,269,815 5,789,815 

2018 3,625,000 2,142,152 5,767,152 

2019 3,740,000 2,000,299 5,740,299 

2020-2033 40,960,000 11,409,493 52,369,493 

$ 58.615.000 $ 22.702.915 $ 81.317.915 

Pension Plan 

Kentuckv Teachers Retirement S}'.stem 

All faculty and exempt employees required to hold a degree and occupying full-time positions, 
defined as seven-tenths (7/10) of normal full-time service on a daily or weekly basis, are required by 
state law to participate in the Kentucky Teachers Reti rement System (KTRS). KTRS, a cost sharing, 
multiple-employer, public employee retirement system, provides reti rement benefits based on an 
employee's final average salary and number of years of service. Benefits are subject to certain 
reductions if the employee retires before reaching age sixty, unless the employee has twen ty-seven or 
more years of pa1-ticipation in the plan. The plan also provides for disability retirement, death and 
survivor benefits and medical insurance. 

The Kentucky Teachers Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by w riting 
to Kentucky Teachers Retirement System, 479 Versailles Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601-3868 or by 
calling (502) 573-5120. 

Funding for the plan is provided from eligible employees who contribute 7.16% of their salary through 
payroll deductions and the Commonwealth of Kentucky, which also indirectly conh·ibutes 14.84% of 
currently eligible employees' salaries to the KTRS through appropriations to the University. 
Contr ibution requirements of the plan members and the University a re established by Kentucky 
Revised Statute and the KTRS Board of Trustees. The University's contributions to KTRS for the years 
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were $4,751,478 and $4,500,837, respectively, equal to the requ ired 
contributions for each year. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

7. Pension Plan, continued 

Kentuckv Employee Retirement System 

Substantially a ll other full-time University employees are required by law to participate in the 
Kentucky Employees Retirement System (KERS), a cost sharing multiple-employer, public employee 
retirement system. KERS provides retirement benefits based on an employee's final average salary and 
number of years of service. Benefits are subject to certain reductions if the employee retires before 
reaching age sixty-five, or has less than twenty-seven years of service. The plan also provides for 
disability retirement, death and survivor benefits and medical insurance. 

The Kentucky Employees Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing 
to Kentucky Employees Retirement System, 1260 Louisville Road, Perimeter Park West, Frankfort, 

Kentucky 40601 or by calling (502) 564-4646. 

Funding for the plan is provided from eligible hazardous and non-hazardous employees who 
contribute 8.00% and 5.00% for members prior to September 1, 2008 and 9.00% and 6.00% for members 
after September 1, 2008, respectively, of their salary through payroll deductions and the 
Commonwealth of Kentucky, which also indirectly contributes 32.21 % and 26.79%, respectively of 
current eligible hazardous and non-hazardous emp loyees' salaries to the KERS through 
appropriations to the University. University contribution rates are determined by the Kentucky 
Revised Statue and the Board of Trustees of the Kentucky Retirement Systems each biennium. 

The University's contributions to KERS for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were $3,386,859 and 
$2,574,231 respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 

Optional Retirement Plans 

Optional retirement plans (ORP's) are available to employees hired on or after January 1, 1997, who 
would otherwise be participants in the Kentucky Teachers' Retirement System. The ORP is 
established as a 403(b) defined contribution plan under, the Internal Revenue Code guidelines. The 
providers of the University's ORP's are the Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association-College 
Retirement Equities Fund, Variable Annu ity Life Insurance Company and Voya Financial. Under 
these plans the employee's contribution is 7.16% of their gross salary and the University's contribution 
is 8.74% to the retirement company and 5.10% to Kentucky Teachers Retirement System. The 
University's contributions under these plans for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were 
$1,757,364 and $1,556,370 respectively, equal to the required contributions for each yeru:. 

8. Operating Leases 

The University has operating lease agreements for use of equipment and various parcels of real estate 
cancelable annually with the option to renew. The University recognizes the expend itures related to 
those obligations as lease payments are made. Total rent expenses under operating type leases were 
approximately $693,000 and $684,000 in 2014 and 2013, respectively. 
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MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

9. Contingencies and Commitments 

The University is a defendant in various lawsuits; however, University management is of the opinion, 
based on advice of legal counsel, that the ultimate resolution of these litigation matters will not have a 
material effect on the future operations or financial position of the University. 

The University receives financial assistance from federa l and state agencies in the form of grants and 
awards. The expenditure of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with 
terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor 
agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liabi li ty of the applicable 
fund. The University has had no disallowed claims in the past. In the opinion of management, such 
potential disallowed claims, if any, would not have a material adverse effect on the overall financial 
position of the University at June 30, 2014. 

The University has made certain commitments related to the completion of various construction 
projects in progress totaling approximately $4,553,309. Such consh·uction is principally financed by 
appropriations from the Commonwealth of Kentucky and proceeds from bonds. 

10. Self-Insurance Program 

The University maintains a self-insurance program for employees' dental insurance. The University 
funds the plan at the single rate for all permanent full-time employees w ith the employees paying 
the difference between the single plan and the family plan, if applicable. Expenses incurred to cover 
claims paid by the University under the plan for fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 totaled 
$315,683 and $311,508, respectively. 

The Univers ity maintains a fully insured health plan. The Univers ity pays a sliding percentage of 
premiums for all permanent fu ll-time employees. Depending on the level of coverage, this amount 
ranges from a low of $386 per month to a high of $655. Payments for employee health insurance for 
fi scal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were $6,004,065 and $5,604,463 respectively. 

11. Risk Management 

The University is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to, d estruction of assets; 
business interruption; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters; and employee health and 
accident benefits. Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for claims arising from theft of, 
damage to, destruction of assets; business interruption; natural disasters; and employee health and 
accident benefits. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the three 
preced ing years. As a sovereign entity of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, the Kentucky Board of 
Claims handles tort claims on behalf of the University. 

The Commonwealth of Kentucky operates a public entity risk pool operating as a common risk 
management and insu rance program for its members. The pool's governing agreement specifies that 
the pool w ill be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial 
carriers for claims in excess of specified stop loss amounts. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

11. Risk Management, continued 

The University operates a self-insurance program for worker's compensation for its employees. The 
University purchases reinsurance through commercial carriers for claims in excess of specified stop 
loss amounts. 

12. Friends of Kentucky Folk Art Center, Inc. 

The Friends of Kentucky Folk Art Center, Inc. (KFAC) provides educational opportunities, benefits 
and programs to the public to enh ance the awareness of and foster an appreciation and understanding 
of contemporary folk art. Under an operating agreement, the University provides office space and 
certain administrative services to the KFAC at no charge. For each of the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2014 and 2013, KFAC received State Appropriations in the amount of $176,554. KFAC is an affiliate of 
the University in accordance with the provisions of KRS 164A.610. The financial statements of this 
affiliated corporation are reported upon separately. However, the assets, liabilities and net assets of 
KFAC have been included in the University's financial statements. 

13. Endowment Trust Funds 

The Foundation holds endowment investments for the University, th e majo ri ty of which are 
associated w ith the Regional University Excellence Trust Fund (RUETF). The RUETF was created by 
the Kentucky General Assembly w ith the passage of the Postsecondary Education Improvement Act 
of 1997 ("I-louse Bill 1"). The RUETF Endowment Match Program, also known as "Bucks for Brains", 
provides state funds on a dollar-for-dollar basis. Funds are endowed for the purposes of supporting 
endowed chairs and professorships. 

The Foundation also holds endowment investments for the University which are associated w ith the 
Technology Endowment Program. The University w ill provide matching funds of at least one dollar 
for every dollar of grant funds. At the end of twenty years, both the principal and the income derived 
will be used to upgrade and/or replace software/hardware of the University's Information 
Management System. 

The fair market value of Morehead State University endow ment funds held by the Foundation as of 
June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $44,200,399 and $38,725,682, respectively. The portion of the endowments 
representing the value of the funding received from the Kentucky General Assembly was $11,724,599 
for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, and is included in investments held by the Foundation. 
The portion of the endowments representing the value of the funding received from the Teclmology 
Endowment Program was $290,229 for both years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, and is included in 
investments held by the Foundation. 

14. Related Parties 

The University an d the Foundation are related parties. The Foundation's purpose is to assist in the 
development, g rowth, expansion and progress of the student programs of Morehead State University. 
The University authorizes the Foundation to solicit contributions on its behalf. In the absence of donor 
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Notes to the Financia l Statem ents, continued 

14. Related Parties, continued 

restrictions, the Foundation has d iscretionary control over the amounts and timing of its distributions 
to the University. 

Related party transactions and funds held by the Foundation on behalf of the University are as follows 
during 2014 and 2013: 

Funds disbursed by the University on behalf of the Foundation for 
employee salaries and benefits 

Funds he ld by the Foundation on behalf or for the 
benefit of the University 

Funds due to the University by the Foundation 

2014 2013 

$ 102,377 

12,014,828 

131,180 

$ 99,499 

12,014,828 
31,928 

The University entered into an agreement with the Foundation where the University will provide 

personnel, office space, support equipment and other services that may be necessary to the 

opera tion of the Foundation. The Foundation reimburses the University for these services at an 

annual rate determined mutua lly by the two enti ties, $179,503 for the year ended June 30, 2014 and 

$81,709 for the year ended June 30, 2013. Amounts disclosed above as funds d isbursed by the 

University on beha lf of the Foundation for employee salaries and benefi ts are net of the annual rate 
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013. 

The University has also entered into several direct financing capital leases of real estate with the 

Foundation as disclosed in Note lSI. 

15. Morehead State University Foundation, Inc. 

A. Description of Organization 

The Morehead State University Founda tion, Inc. (the Foundation) is a corporation fo rmed for 

educational, charitable and public purposes in accordance with the provisions of KRS 273.0010. The 
Founda tion is a component unit of Morehead State University (the University). Specifica lly, it was 

founded to cooperate with the University and its Board of Regents in the promotion of the 

educational, civic and charitable purposes of the University in any lawful manner deemed 

appropriate by the Foundatio n's Board o f Trustees. This purpose includes the encouragement of 

scholarship and research and the promotion of the prestige, expansion and development of the 

University's physical plant and facu lty and the assis tance of its students and alumni. 

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The fi nancial s ta tements have been p repared in conformi ty with accounting pri nciples generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) which require management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures in the fin ancial statements. Actual 

results could d iffer from those estimates. The follow ing is a summary of the signi fican t accounting 

policies consistently followed by the Foundation in the prepara tion of its financial statem ents. 
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15. Morehead State University Foundation, Inc., continued 

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Basis of Presentation 

The Foundation's financial statements are presented in accordance with GAAP. Under these standards 
net assets and revenues, expenses, gains and losses are classified based upon the existence or absence of 
donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Foundation and changes therein are classified 

and reported as follows: 

Unrestricted net assets: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. Unrestricted 
net assets may be designated for specific purposes by action of the Board of Trustees. 

Temvorarili1 restricted net assets: Net assets whose use by the Foundation is subject to donor­
imposed stipulations that can be fu lfilled by actions of the Foundation pursuant to those 
stipulations or that expire by the passage of time. 

Permanent/11 restricted net assets: Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that nei ther 
expire by the passage of time nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed. Generally, donors of 
these assets permit the Foundation to use all or part of the income earned on related investments 

for general or specific purposes. 

Cash 

The Foundation maintains its cash balances in financial institutions, which at times, may exceed 
federally insured limits. The Foundation has not experienced any losses on such accounts. The 
Foundation believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk related to its cash balances. 

Pledges Receivable 

Pledges receivable of amounts greater than $500, less an appropriate allowance amount, are recorded 
at the net present value of estimated future cash flows using a d iscount rate commensurate with the 
risks involved. Net present value was computed using a discount rate of .72% and 5.25% for the years 
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 

Pledges receivable are presented net of an allowance for doubtful accounts ($607,248 and $263,922 as of 
June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively). The allowance for doubtful accounts is established through a 
provision for doubtful accounts charged to expense. The allowance represents an amount, which in 
management's judgment, will be adequate to absorb probable losses on existing pledges that may 
become uncollectible. 
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15. Morehead State University Foundation, Inc., continued 

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Investments 

Investments in equity securities having a readily determinable fair value and all debt securities are 
carried at fair value. Investment returns include d ividend, interest and other investment income and 
realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments carried at fair value. Investment returns that 
are initially restricted by donor stipulation and for w hich the restriction w ill be satisfied in the same 
year are included as unrestricted net assets. Other investment returns are reflected in the statement 
of activities as unrestricted, temporarily resh·icted or permanently restricted based upon the existence 
and nature of any donor o r legally imposed restrictions. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment is stated at cost at the date of acquisition or fair value at date of donation. 
Expenditures with a cost greater than $1,000, which increase values or extend useful lives of the 
respective assets, are capitalized, whereas expenditures for maintenance and repajrs are charged to 
expense as incurred. Depreciation of assets is computed using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the respective assets. 

Annuities Pavable 

The Foundation pays stipulated amounts periodically to individuals (annuitants) who have given to 
the Foundation certain assets and who have entered into agreements that such payments cease at the 
death of the annuitant. Total annuity payments for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were 

$200,233 and $196,919, respectively. 

The June 30, 2014 and 2013 annuity liabi lity balances of $1,234,760 and $1,243,551, respectively are the 
present values of the monthly, quarterly, or semiannual payments to the annuitants based on the life 
expectancies of the annuitan ts and interest rates ranging from .69% to 4.39%. The estimated 
remaining life expectancies of the annu itants ranged from 4.0 to 18.2 years and 4.2 to 18.9 years for 
the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 

Due to Morehead State Universitv 

Contributions were made to the Foundation related to a program that the University has prefunded. 
The Foundation and the University have agreed that contribu tions made to the Foundation on behalf 
of this program w ill be remitted to the University annually. In accordance w ith GAAP, the 
contributions have been included as a liabili ty on the Foundation's statements of financial position. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

15. Morehead State University Foundation, Inc., continued 

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Funds Held in Trust for Morehead State Un iversity 

The Foundation is the custodian of funds owned by the University for the purpose of establishing 
certain endowment funds as authori zed by the Kentucky Council on Postsecondary Education and 
the Kentucky General Assembly. The Foundation invests the principal with a portion of the income 
derived from the principal to be remitted annually to the University. For the years ended June 30, 
2014 and 2013, the Foundation held $12,014,828 for the University's investment purposes. 

Income Taxes 

The Foundation is exempt from federa l income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the In ternal Revenue 
Code. Except for tax on any unrelated business income activities, no provision for income taxes has 

been made. 

The Foundation has evaluated the tax positions taken on all income tax returns that remain open to 
examination by the respective taxing authorities (those returns filed for the years 2010 through 2013) 
and does not believe there are any uncertain positions on those returns that should impact the 
financial sta tements. 

Contribu tions 

Gifts of cash and other assets received w ithout donor stipu lations are reported as unrestricted 
revenue and net assets. Gifts received with donor stipulations that limit their use are reported as 
temporarily o r permanently restricted revenue an d net assets. Wh en a donor-stipulated time 
restriction ends or the purpose of the restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are 
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released 
from restrictions. Gifts and investment income that are originally resh·icted by the donor and for 
which the restriction is met in the same time period are included in unrestricted net assets. 

Gifts of land, buildings, equipment, and other long-lived assets are reported as unrestr icted revenue 
and net assets unless explicit donor stipula tions specify how such assets must be used, in w hich case 
the g ifts are reported as temporarily o r permanently restricted revenue and net assets. Absent 
explicit donor stipulations for the time long-lived assets must be held, expirations of restrictions 
resulting in the reclassification of tempora rily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets are 
reported when the long-lived assets are placed in service. 

Uncond itional gifts expected to be collected within one year are reported at th eir net realizable value. 
Uncond itional g ifts expected to be collected in futu re years are recorded at the present value of 
estimated fu ture cash flows. The resulting discount is computed using risk-free interest app licable to 
the years in which the promises are received. Amortization using the level-yield method is included 
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15. Morehead State University Foundation, Inc., continued 

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Contributions, continued 

in contribu tion revenue. Conditional gifts are not included as support until the condi tions are 
substantially met. 

Donated Materials and Propertv 

Donated materials and property are recorded at their estimated fair value when received. The 
statements of activities for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 include in-kind contributions of 
$406,118 and $339,088, respectively. 

Functional Allocation of Expenses 

The costs of supporting the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a 
functiona l basis in the statements of activities. Certain costs have been allocated among the functional 
categories based on their relationship to various direct costs in those functions. 

Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events for accounting and disclosure requirements through 
September 24, 2014, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

Reclassifications 

Certain accounts in the 2013 financia l statements have been reclassified to conform with the 2014 
presentation w ith no effect on net assets or changes in net assets. 

C. Investments 

Investments held as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 are summarized as follows: 

2014 2013 

Certificates of deposit $ $ 83,813 
Mutual funds 28,059,163 24,614,332 
Alternative investments 15,635,481 13,537,331 
Corporate bonds and stock 54,219 43,170 
Annuity investments 145,435 141176 

$ £13,824,228 $ 38,112,822 
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15. Morehead State University Foundation, Inc., continued 

C. Investments, continued 

Investment management fees were approximately $92,000 and $84,000 during the years ended June 

30, 2014 and 2013, respective ly. 

D. Fair Value Measurements 

The Foundation has determined the fair value of certain assets and liabilities through application of 

GAAP. 

June 30, 2014 

Mutual funds: 

Equity 

U.S. Large Cap 

U.S. Small Cap 

International 

Global 

Fixed income and cash: 

Cash 

Core 

Non-core/tactica l 

Alternative investments: 

Hedge funds 

Real assets 

Private equity 

Corporate bonds and stocks 

Annuity investm ent 

Total assets 

Fai r Value 

$ 6,677,186 

3,533,021 

6,210,060 

1,815,896 

1,323,400 

5,669,000 

2,830,600 

9,730,685 

5,367,618 

537,178 

54,219 

145,435 

$ 43,894,298 
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Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using 

Quoted Prices in Significant 

Active Markets for Other Significa nt 

Identical Observable Unobservable 

Assets/Liabil it ies Inputs Inputs 

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 

$ 6,677,186 $ $ 

3,533,021 

6,210,060 

1,815,896 

1,323,400 

5,669,000 

2,830,600 

9,730,685 

5,367,618 

537,178 

54,219 

145,435 

$ 28,258,817 $ $ 15,635,481 



MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Sta tements, continued 

15. Morehead State University Foundation, Inc., continued 

D. Fair Value Measurements, continued 
Fair Va lue Measurements at Reporting Da te Using 

Quoted Prices in Significa nt 

Active Ma rkets for Other Significant 

Ident ical Observable Unobservable 

Assets/Lia b iii ties In puts Inputs 

June 30, 2013 Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 

Certifica tes of deposit $ 83,813 $ 83,813 $ $ 

Mutual funds: 

Equity 

U.S. Large Cap 7,113,997 7,113,997 

U.S. Small Cap 1,310,088 1,310,088 

International 4,938,464 4,938,464 

Global 1,640,009 1,640,009 

Fixed income and cash: 

Cash 1,350,564 1,350,564 

Core 5,605,976 5,605,976 

Non-core/tactical 2,655,234 2,655,234 

Alternative investments: 

Hedge funds 9,010,726 9,010,726 

Real assets 4,186,261 4,186,261 

Private equity 340,344 340,344 

Corporate bonds and s tocks 43,170 43,170 

Annuity investment 141,176 141,176 

Total assets $ 38,419,822 $ 24,882,491 $ $ 13,537,331 

Financial assets and liabilities valued using level 1 inputs are based on unadjusted quoted market 
prices within active markets. Financial assets and liabilities valued using level 2 inputs are based 
primarily on quoted prices fo r similar assets or liabilities in active o r inactive markets. Financial 
assets and liabilities valued using level 3 inputs are valued as follows: 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financia l Statements, continued 

15. Morehead State Univers ity Foundation, Inc., continued 

D. Fair Value Measu rements, continued 

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements 

Hedge funds 

Real assets 

Private equities 

Valuation Techniques 

Capital contribution adjusted for allocated 
profits and losses based upon participation 
percentage (investor capital account 
divided total capital accounts) as 
determined at the beginning of lhe fiscal 
year. 

Investment is in various funds, which arc 
valued in dividually using the following 
me thods: 
1) Capped, float-adjusted, capitalization­
weighted methodology 

2) Net asset value of underlying 
companies/fun ds being invested in, whid 1 
hold real estate 

3) Current appraisal values and market 
information for properties held 

4) Ma rket comparable companies 

Ma rket comparable companies 

Unobservable Inputs 

- Valuation and performance of underlying fund(s) being 
invested in by the hedge fund 

- Diversification of U1e underlying fund(s) 

- Leverage model used by the underlying fund(s) 

- Valuation and performance of underlying fund(s) being 
invested in 

- Diversifica tion of the underlying fund(s) 

- Leverage model used by the underlying fund(s) 

- Relative health of industry in which real assets held are 
associated w ith 

- Discount for lack of marketability 

- Control premium 

-Threats from competition and regula tory environment 

There have been no changes in the methodo logy used to dete rmine the fa ir market value a t June 30, 

2014 and 2013. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

Morehead State University Foundation, Inc., continued 

D. Fair Value Measurements, continued 

The table below presents information about the changes in the fair value of assets based on 
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): 

Hedge Funds Real Assets Private Eguity Total 

Balance, June 30, 2012 $ 7,639,015 $ 3,366,300 $ 200,000 $ 11,205,315 

Additional investment 865,000 865,000 

Unrealized gains 539,099 824,085 141,344 1,504,528 

Fees (32,388) (4,124) (1,000) (37,512) 

Balance, June 30, 2013 $ 9,010,726 $ 4,186,261 340,344 $ 13,537,331 

Additional investment 3,351,411 648,996 151,586 4,151,993 

Funds sold (3,440,717) (3,440,717) 

Realized gains 2,173 2,173 

Unrealized gains 826,152 541,189 46,037 1,413,378 

Fees (19,060) (8,828) (789) (28,677) 

Balance, June 30, 2014 $ 9,730,685 $ 5,367,618 $ 537,178 $ 15,635,481 

Donor-Designated Endowments 

The Foundation has adopted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act 
(UPMIFA). The Foundation follows UPMIFA and its own governing documents. The Foundation 
has interpreted UPMIFA as maintaining historical dollar value and to retain in endowment funds a 
portion of the investment return to support the increasing cost of benefits in the future, absent 
explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Foundation classifies 
as permanently restricted net assets (1) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent 
endowment, (2) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (3) 
accumulations made pursuant to an appl icable gift agreement. The Foundation has determined that 
the balance of its endowments includes funds that require that the income and net appreciation be 
restricted to certain uses for the benefit of participants. 

The Foundation, on the advice of legal counsel, has determined that the majority of contributions are 
subject to the terms of its governing documents. Certain contributions are received subject to other 
gift instruments, or are subject to specific agreements with the Foundation. Under the terms of the 
Foundation's governing documents, the Foundation has the ability to distribute as much of the 
original principal of any trust or separate g ift, devise, bequest, o r fund as the Foundation in its sole 
discretion shall determine. As a resu lt of the ability to distribute the original principal, all 
contributions not classified as temporarily restricted or permanently restricted are classified as 
unrestricted net assets for financial statement purposes. 
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MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

15. Morehead State University Foundation, Inc., continued 

D. Fair Value Measurements, continued 

Donor-Designated Endowments, continued 

The Foundation has established a financial management and investment policy for endowment 
assets that provides general guidelines for the prudent investment management of the endowment 
fund assets. The investment policy is established with the objective to preserve the real purchasing 
power of endowment assets as well as generate capital appreciation, after accounting for 
endowment spending, inflation, and costs of the portfolio and fund management, both internal and 
external. 

The current financial management and investment policy establishes an annual maximum approved 
spending goal for distributions of up to 3.5% of endowment assets, a combined Foundation 
management fee to support the annual operating budget and investment consultant fees shall not be 
greater than 2.5% of the portfolio value, and therefore the long-term target minimum annual return 
shall be 6.0%. In order to achieve a prudent level of portfolio diversification, the securities of any one 
company should not exceed more than 10% of total, and no more than 25% of total should be 
invested in any one sector. 

The Foundation's investments include endowment investments for the University associated with the 
Technology Endowment Program and RUETF Endowment Match Program, also known as "Bu cks 
for Brains". Funds held for the Technology Endowment Program are matched by the University of at 
least one dollar for every dollar of grant funds. As of both June 30, 2014 and 2013, the amount of 
funds included in the Foundation's investments held for the Technology Endowment Program was 
$290,229. Funds held for the RUETF Endowment Match Program are endowed for the purposes of 
supporting endowed cha irs and professorships, scholarships, fellowships, research funds, and 
mission support funds. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the amount of funds included in the 
Foundation's investments held for the RUETF Endowment Match Program was $11,724,599 each 
year. These amounts are shown as funds held in trust for Morehead State University on the 
statements of financial position and are therefore not included in donor-designated endowment net 
assets. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

15. Morehead State University Foundation, Inc., continued 

D. Fair Value Measurements, continued 

Donor-Designated Endowments, continued 

Endowment net asset composition by fund type and changes in endowment net assets by fund type 

as of June 30, 2014 are as follows: 

Total Net 
Temporarily Permanently Endowment 

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Assets 

Endowment net assets, 

beginning of year s s 8,664,493 $ 18,046,361 $ 26,710,854 

Contributions 1,173,102 1,173,102 

[nterest and dividend 
income 545,407 545,407 

Net appreciation 4,589,937 4,589,937 

Amounts appropriated 
for expenditure (833,729) (833,729) 

Endowment net assets, 
end of year $ $ 12,966,108 $ 19,219,463 $ 32,185,571 

Endowment net asset composition by fund type and changes in endowment net assets by fund type 

as of June 30, 2013 are as follows: 

Endowment net assets, 

beginning of year 

Contributions 

Interest and dividend 

income 

Net appreciation 

Amounts appropriated 

for expenditure 

Endowment net assets, 

end of yea r 

Unrestricted 

$ 

$ 

50 

Temporarily 

Restricted 

$ 5,806,366 

476,482 

2,538,155 

(156,510) 

$ 8,664,493 

Permanently 

Res tricted 

$ 17,401,732 

644,629 

$ 18,046,361 

Total Net 

Endowment 

Assets 

$ 23,208,098 

644,629 

476,482 

2,538,155 

(156,510) 

$ 26,710,854 



MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

15. Morehead State University Foundation, Inc., continued 

E. Pledges Receivable 

Pledges receivable have been designated to be paid by donors as follows: 

Year ended June 30, 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
Thereafter 

Less: present value discount 
Less: allowance for uncollectible pledges 

Pledges receivable, net 

Less: current pledges receivable 
Noncurrent pledges receivable 

F. Property and Equipment 

$ 

$ 

1,753,891 
1,139,890 

898,344 
815,690 
764,700 

1,006,000 
6,378,515 

(306,031) 
(607,248) 

5,465,236 

(1,7?6,224) 

3.739.012 

Property and equipment as of June 30, 2014and 2013 consists of the following: 

2014 

Land $ 53,000 

Furniture and equipment 158,616 

Buildings 175 000 
386,616 

Less: accumulated depreciation (159,485) 

$ 227.131 

2013 

$ 53,000 
127,907 
175 000 
355,907 
(146,588) 

$ 209.319 

Depreciation expense was $13,013 and $12,468 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, 

respectively. 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

15. Morehead State University Foundation, Inc., continued 

G. Deferred Giving Program 

The Foundation established a life insu rance deferred g iving program duri ng 1983. The program 
consists of donors designating the Foundation as the owner and beneficiary of li fe insurance policies. 
There are twenty deferred g iving programs w ith life insu rance in effect totaling $625,000 and 
$685,000 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The cash surrender value of these 
policies as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 is $107,228 and $119,920, respectively. 

H. Support for Moreh ead State University 

The Foundation's purpose is to assist in the development, g rowth, expans ion and progress of the 
student programs of Morehead State University. All support to the University has been disclosed 
separately on the statements of activities as University support. 

I. Net Investment in Capital Leases 

The Foundation's net investment in d irect financing capital leases of real estate with the University as 

of June 30 is as follows: 

Total minimum lease payments to be received 

Less: unearned income 

Net investment in capital leases 

$ 

2014 

585,419 
(156,075) 

429.31H 

2013 

$ 696,915 
(193,553) 

$ 503 362 

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments due from direct financing capital 

leases as of June 30: 

2015 $ 111,495 

2016 77,700 

2017 70,941 

2018 70,941 

2019 64,631 

Thereafter 189,711 

$ 585,412 
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MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

15. Morehead State University Foundation, Inc., continued 

J. Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available at June 30 for the following purpose: 

2014 2013 

Funds resh·icted for specific purposes $ 20,298,343 $ 12,623,333 
Scholarships 15,455 13,681 

Athletics 211,280 24,738 

$ 20,525.078 $ 12.661,752 

Permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2014 and 2013 consist of endowment funds. 

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following as of June 30: 

2014 2013 

Cash $ 1,295,349 $ 532,495 

Pledges receivable 4,892,022 2,075,648 

Accounts receivable 60,000 
Investments 13,716,111 9,414,495 

Buildings 132,252 135,752 

Net investment in capital leases 429,344 503,362 

$ 20.525.078 $. 12,661.752 

Permanently restricted net assets consist of the following as of June 30: 

2014 2013 

Cash $ 128,734 $ 204,901 

Pledges receivable 206,539 138,501 

Investments 18,831,190 17,649,959 

Buildings 53,000 53 000 

$ 12,21!U63 $ 18,0:16,361 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued 

15. Morehead State University Foundation, Inc., continued 

K. Related-Party Transactions 

The University entered into an agreement with the Foundation where the University will provide 
personnel, office space, support equipment and other services that may be necessary to the operation 
of the Foundation. The Foundation reimburses the University for these services at a rate determined 
mutually by the two entities, $179,503 and $81,709 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively. GAAP requires recognition of professional services received if those services (a) create 
long-lived assets or (b) require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, 
and wou ld typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation. Those services in excess of the 
agreed upon amount are considered in-kind contributed services and are treated as both revenue and 
expense to the Foundation. 

Related party transactions and balances are as follows dming 2014 and 2013: 

Funds disbursed by the University on behalf of the Foundation for 
employee salaries and benefits 

Funds due to the University by the Foundation 

2014 

$ 102,377 

131,180 

2013 

$99,499 
31,928 

Transactions with the University include direct financing capital leases and support for the 
University as d isclosed in Notes Hand I. 
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MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Schedule of Bonds, Notes and Capital Lease Obligations 

June 30, 2014 

Net Interest Debt Service 

Issue Amount of Interest Outstanding Payments Outstanding Paid Requirements 2014-15 

Date Issue Cost Iune 30, 2013 2013-14 New Issues Iune 30, 2014 2013-14 Princi12al Interest 

: onsolidated Educational 

Building Revenue Bonds: 

Series M 01/01/04 $ 5,620,000 2.00-3.625 $ 1,080,000 $ 585,000 $ $ 495,000 $ 42,637 $ 40,000 $ 21,431 

Total educational buildings 5,620,000 1,080,000 585,000 495,000 42,637 40,000 21,431 

=::eneral Receipts: 

2007 Series A Bonds 08/14/07 6,445,000 4.000 4,570,000 230,000 4,340,000 178,200 235,000 168,900 

2008 Series A Bonds 06/10/08 10,000,000 3.00-3.800 6,695,000 715,000 5,980,000 221,204 735,000 197,641 

2009 Series A Bonds 07/29/09 28,930,000 2.00-6.000 25,360,000 1,235,000 24,125,000 1,329,114 1,265,000 1,282,819 

2010 Series A Bonds 06/29/10 5,770,000 1.27-5.750 5,280,000 250,000 5,030,000 239,138 255,000 232,794 

2011 Series A Bonds 07/25/11 5,090,000 2.00-4.125 4,880,000 215,000 4,665,000 162,606 220,000 158,256 

2012 Series A Bonds 06/15/12 5,060,000 2.00-3.625 5,060,000 210,000 4,850,000 143,181 215,000 138,931 

2013 Series A Bonds 09/10/13 9,475,000 1.00-4.375 345,000 9,475,000 9,130,000 154,549 375,000 294,079 

Total General Receipts 70,770,000 51,845,000 3,200,000 9,475,000 58,120,000 2,427,992 3,300,000 2,473,420 
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MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Schedule of Bonds, Notes and Capital Lease Obligations 

June 30, 2014 

Interest Debt Service 

Issue Net Amount Interest Outstanding Payments Outstanding Paid Requirements 2014-15 

Date of Issue Cost Iune 30, 2013 2013-14 New Issues Iune 30, 2014 2013-14 Princi12al In terest 

Lease Purchase Agreements: 

MSU Foundation, Inc. 03/01/99 240,000 5.000 93,235 14,598 78,637 4,330 15,345 3,583 

MSU Foundation, Inc. 10/21/02 466,457 9.400 326,528 21,839 304,689 30,174 23,982 28,030 

Citi Mortgage, Inc. 03/31/05 1,824,000 4.190 930,508 127,350 803,158 37,668 132,742 32,276 

Suntrust Bank, Inc. 06/15/05 3,874,522 3.580 888,594 436,415 452,179 27,940 452,179 12,177 

MSU Foundation, Inc. 09/01/05 327,764 4.470 83,599 37,582 46,017 2,973 39,296 1,259 

JP Morgan/Chase 03/31/12 9,671,127 2.650 9,671,127 403,256 9,267,871 570,803 735,731 238,328 

Mabry Property 12/19/13 875,000 4.500 53,790 875,000 821,210 19,185 111,274 34,678 

Total lease purchase 17,278,870 11,993,591 1,094,830 875,000 11,773,761 693,073 1,510,549 350,331 

Total $ 23,668.870 $64,218,521 $ 4,872,830 $ 1Q.35Q,QQQ $ 7Q.388,761 $ 3.163,7QZ $. 4,850,542 $ 2,845.182 
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MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERS ITY 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2014 

Federal Granlor/Pass Tiiro ugh Granlor/l'rogram or Clus ler Title 

US Departmenl or Educalion 

Direct Programs: 

Sludent Financial Aid Clus ter: 

Federal Work Sludy 
Federal Pell Grant Program 

Federal Supplemenlal Educational Opportunity Granls 

Program 
Federal Perkins Loan Program 

Federal Direct Loan Program 

Teacher Educational Assis t.incc for College and Higher 

Education Grant 

TRIO Clus ler: 

UPWARD BOUND MATH/SCI 12/13 

UPWARD BOUND CENTRAL 13/14 

UPWARD BOUND EAST 12/13 

TALENT SEARCH 11/16 

TALENT SEARCH 11 11/16 

STUDENT SUPPORT 10/15 

CEOC-NE 09/14 

ROWLAND-USED-CEOC-SE 12/17 

GEAR UP !RAPP 08/14 

Pass Through Number 

Passed through Kentucky Council on Pos tsecondary Educalion 

BARTON-USED-CPE-ALGEBRi\ 12/14 PO2 415 1300003326 1 

BARTON-USED-CPE-/\LGEBRJ\ 14/15 

BARTON-USED-CPE-RE/\DING 12/13 

BARTON-USED-CPE-READING 2 1214 

CONNELL-ADULT ED ACADEMY 12/13 
CONNELL-USED-CPE-GEAR UP 13/14 

HARR-CPE-ADUL T PROF DEV 13/14 

HENDERSON-BATH-USED-CPE 13/1'1 

HENDERSON-MONT-USED-CPE 13/14 

1-IENDERSON-MSU ADULT LC 12/13 
HENDERSON-MSU-USED-CPE 13/1 4 

Henderson-Perform-llalh 13/14 

Henderson-Pcrfom1-MSU 13/14 

Henderson-Perfom1-Powell 13/ 14 

1-Jenderson-Perform-Wcst Liberty 

1-JENDERSON-POWELL-USED-CPE 13/ 1 

HENDERSON-WL-USED-CPE 13/ 1'1 

HENDERSON-WOLFE-USED-CPE 13/14 

STEELE-ADUL! ED-USED-CPE 13/14 

Passed lhrough Kentucky Department of Education 

STUBBS-USED-KDE-FIELD BASED 13 

Sll.JIJBS-USED-KDE-PD 13/14 

WYMER-USED-KDE-COllRA 12/13 

PO2 415 1400003505 

P02 415 1200003615 I 

PO2 415 1300003285 I 

PON2-415-1300000476-I 

PO2 415 1400000542 I 

P02 415 1300006406 I 

1'02415 1400000701 I 

P02 -11 5 1400000701 I 

P02 415 13000021l4 1 

1'02 415 140000070 I I 

P02 415 1400000701 I 

P02 415 1400000701 I 

P02 415 1400000701 I 

1'02 415 1400000701 I 

P02 415 1400000701 I 

P02 415 1400000701 1 

ro2 -115 1400000701 1 

PO2 415 1300006203 1 

PON2 540 1300002934 I 

PON2 540 1300002712 I 

PON2-540-1200001684-1 

Passed throug h Kentucky Education and \.Vorkforcc Development Cabinet 

Sll.JBBS-TITLE IC-NURSE 13/14 PON2 5•IO 1300002845 I 

Sll.JBllS-TlTLE-IC-VET 13/14 
Sll.JIJ[JS-·n TLE IC-IMAGING 13/14 

Mi\TllNGLY-CDP REHAB 12/1 -1 

PON2 S•IO 1300002845 1 

PON2 540 1300002845 I 

PON2-531-12000028 I 1- I 
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Q:QA_ 

~ 

84.033 

84.063 

84.007 

84.038 

84.268 

84.405 

84.047 

84.047A 

84.047A 

84.044/\ 

84.044A 

84.042 

84.066 

84.066;\ 

84.334A 

84.36713 

84.367 

84.3678 

84.3678 

84.002 
84.3345 

84.002 

84.002 

84.002 

84.002 
84.002 

84.002 

84.002 

84.002 

84.002 

84.002 

84.002 

84.002 

84.002 

84.048A 
84.048A 

84.3668 

84.048A 

84.048A 

84.048A 

84.346 

s 

..tlilllli.L 
t,xpcndilurcs 

865,227 
16,046, 11 2 

232,637 

694,584 

48,860,886 

38,553 

66,737,999 

256,612 

546,475 

290,760 
418,903 

247,079 

316,021 

443,415 

2,519,265 

230,601 

1,615,802 

1,846,403 

96,151 

20,455 
7,171 

113,645 

7,363 
177,792 

21,623 

95,164 

154,341 

12 

132,606 

3,781 

7,027 

5,313 

3,709 

113,095 

149,905 

84,538 

307,756 

1,501,447 

20,808 
2,708 

56,266 

79,782 

10,586 

10,32·1 
10,312 

821,626 

852,848 



MOllEHEAD STATE UNIVEllSIT Y 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2014 

Federal Grantor/Pass Through Gri\n\orfl'rogram or Cluster Tille 
Passed th rough National Writing Project Corp 

Mascle-USED-NWP-SEED 12/13 

MASCLE-USED-NWl'-HIGHNEED 12/13 

Toto! U.S. De partment of Education 

Appalachian Regional Commission 

Direct Programs 

KY AHED-WALKER 12/13 

DEMOSS-ARC-DENTAL 13/14 

DEMOSS-ARC-PARENT 13/14 

DEMOSS-ARC-DENTAL 11/13 

WALKER-ARC-KY AHED 13/14 

Passed through East Tenessee S tale 

HAIGHT-ARC-ETSU-ATP 13/14 

To ta l Appalochian Regional Commission 

Corporal ion for National and Community Service 

Direc JUDD-CNCS-RSVP 12/15 

Pass Through..l'll!.!!.lll 

94-KY07-SEED20 12 

94-KY07-SEED2012 

220013-05 

Passed through Kentucky Cabinet for Health and Family Services 

MSU CORPS-CNCS 12/13 P02 730 13000000-15 2 

WILLIAMS-CNCS-C HFS-MSU CORPS PO2 730 1300000045 3 

Total Corporation for National and Community Service 

Corporal ion for Public Broadcas ting 

Direct Programs 

HITCHCOC K-CPD-RADIO 12/13 

1-IITCHCOCK-CPIJ-RADIO 13ONUS 13/1 

HITCHCOCK-CPB-RADIO 12/14 

H!TCI-ICOCK-CPl}-RADIO CS 13/1 4 

HITCHCOCK-CPll-RADIO CS 13/15 

Tota l Corporation for Pul,lic Broadcasting 

Ins titute o f Mus eum and Library Services 

Direct Programs 

COLLINSWORTI·l-OlJIBEACH 11/13 

Total Institute of Museum and Library Services 

58 

CT.!M. 
~ 

84.3670 

84.367D 

23.001 

23.001 

23.001 

23.001 

23.001 

23.01 I 

94.002 

94.006 

94.006 

11.55 

11.55 

11.55 

11.55 

11.55 

45.301 

.ft.!!llil 
Expenditures 

8,718 

200 

8,918 

73,546,662 

120,611 

346,782 

180,169 

45,398 

116,887 

809,847 

4,000 

4,000 

813,847 

85,022 

85,022 

29,975 

341,482 

371,457 

456,479 

23,509 

23.296 

59,301 

37,227 

44,501 

187,834 

187,834 

9,695 

9,695 

9,695 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2014 

Fede ral Grantor(Pass Through G ran tor/Program or Cluster Title 

National Aeronautics and Space Administration 

Direct Programs 

MALPHRUS-NASA-FLASHLIGHT 13 

MALPHRUS-NASA-UH FEED SYSTEM I 

Pass Through Number 

Passed through Northern Kentucky University Research Foundation 

Recder-NASA-NKURF-SrEM 13/15 4000972-Sl 

Passed through Radiance Technologies 

MALPHRUS-NASA-RAD-SBIRl 14 

Passed through University of Kentucky Research Foundation 

W9 132V-14-P-0006 

CFDA 

Number 

43.001 

43008 

43.008 

43.001 

XU-NASA-UKRl' -MATERIALS SC 121 3 NNXJ0AL96H, subaward 3048107336-1 3-144 43.001 

MALPHRUS-NASA-EPSCOR 13/ 14 3048107646-13-239 43.008 

PANNIJTI-NASA-UKRF-FREQ 12/13 

PANNUTI-NASA-UKRF-FREQ 14 

JERDE-NASA-UKRF-SPACE WS 12/13 

JERDE-NASA-UKRF-SPACE WS 14 

Total National Aeronautics and Space Admin_istration 

Natipnal Endowment for the Aris 

Direct Programs 

Collinsworth-NEA-Comell 14/15 

Total National Endowment for the Aris 

National Endowment for the Humanities 

Direct Programs: 

SUMNER-NEJ-1-MUSLIM 13/14 

Total National Endowment for the Humanities 

National Ins titute for Hometown Security 

Direct Programs: 

LANGE-NII-IS-STUDY 10/13 

Total National Ins titute for Hometown Security 

National Institute of Health 

Direct Programs: 

White-NIH AMP 07/10 

CARLSON-N IH 13/16 
WHITE-NII-I-AMPHETAMINE I 1/14 

HARE-NIH-MOA OF UmuD 12/16 

°Nol s11/,jecl lo 0MB Circular A-133 

3048107645-13-145 

3048107336-14-1 03 

43.001 
43.001 

NNXI0AL96H, subaward 3048107336-13-136 43.001 

·3048107336-14-106 43.001 

45.024 

45.164 

97.000· 

93.279 
93.865 

93.l 13 
93.113 

59 

Federal 

fu.nenditurcs 

24,779 

28,933 

53,712 

5,194 
5,194 

6,999 

6,999 

1,240 

75,000 

8,282 

109 

5,000 

625 

90,256 

156,161 

10,509 

10,509 

10,509 

4,154 

4,154 

4,154 

90,542 
90,542 

90,542 

5,888 
83,792 

76,821 

64,808 

231,309 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Schedule of Expenditures of Fede ral Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2014 

Federal Gr;mtor{Pass Through Granter/Program or C lus ter T itle Pass Through Number 
Passed through University of Louisville Research Foundation 

INBRE-KBRIN-MA1TINGLY 13/14 ULRF 09-010901-06 

INBRE-KBRIN-CARLSON 14/ 15 

INBRE-KBRIN-Startup 14/15 

HARE-NJH-UMUD-KllRIN llRIDG 1314 

INBRE-KBRIN-1-tarc-Bridge 14/15 

INBRE-KBRJN-GIBBS-INVEST 13/14 

INBRE-KIJRIN-Mattingly 14/ 15 
INBRE-KBRJN-DENNIS-LEAO 13/14 

INBRE-KDRIN-Dennis-Lead 14/15 

INBRE-KIJRIN-CARLSON 13/14 

Total National Ins titu te o f Health 

National Science Foundation 

Direct Programs 

SCHACK-NSF-NUMERACY 11/12 

HARE-NSF-MAPPING 12/14 

DENNIS-NSF-PERIPLASMIC 11/ 14 

Passed through Universidad Metropolitana, SRDC 

ESPADA-SUMMER RESEARCH-13/14 

ULRF 13-1493-08 

ULRF 13-1493-08 

ULRF 09-0109D1-06 

ULRF 13-1493-08 

ULRF 09-010901-06 

ULRF 13-1493-08 

ULRF 09-0109D 1-06 

ULRF 13-1493-08 

ULRF 09-0 I 09D 1-06 

Passed through University of Kentucky Research Foundation 

OKEEFE-NSF-UKRF-CENOZOIC 12/13 Subaward 3048108525-13-165 

Tot.ii Nation;, I Science Found;ition 

US Department of Agriculture 

Direct Programs: 

MORLEY-RURAL BUS-USDA 13/14 

MORLEY-USDA-RURAL BUS 12/13 

MORLEY-ENERGY AUDIT 10/13 

Passed throug h Kentucky Department of Education 

Cady-Summer Food 14 

CADY-SUMMER FOOD 13 

Passed through Louis iana State Un iversity 

MARK-USDA-LSU 11/13 

T ota l US Department of Agriculture 

US Department of Commerce 

Passed through Commonwealth Office of Technology 

MARSHALL-COT-BROADBAND 13/14 

Total US Department o f Com merce 

I 03-X30-999-SU 

2011-69005-30515 

PON2 079 1400000658 I 

60 

QQA. 
l::1..1!.m.llli 

93.389 

93.389 

93.389 

93.389 

93.389 

93.389 

93.389 

93.389 

93.389 

93.389 

47.076 

47.075 

47.074 

•17.049 

47.081 

10.769 

10.769 

10.769 

10.558 

10.558 

10.31 

I 1.558 

Federal 

Expenditures 

80,747 

4,847 

18,701 

25,832 

5,168 

83,817 

15,371 

26,675 
1,471 

19,801 

282,430 

513,739 

17,602 

101,901 
74,991 

194,494 

8,197 

8, 197 

11,467 

11,467 

214,158 

42,467 

24,056 

8,073 

74,596 

10,558 

21,758 

32,316 

95 

95 

107,007 

36,629 

36,629 

36,629 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITI' 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2014 

fcdual Granlor/Pass Through Gran tor/Program or Cluster Title 

US Department o f Health and Human Services 

Direct Programs: 

llarnett-HHS-Suicide Prevention 

Passed through Eastern Kentucky University 

WILSON-MSU TRAINING-HHS-EKU 13 

Geurin-PCWCP-Morehead 13/14 

Hcsterberg-PCWCP-Ashland 13/14 

Hcsterberg-PCWCP-Prcston 13/ 14 

Geurin-PCWCP-Mt.Sterling 13/14 

Passed through Governor's Office of Early Childhood 

AKERS-HHS-COEC-CECC 13 

Passed lhrough Ky Administrative Office of the Courts 

SHANNON-DOJ-AOC-ST ATE WIDE 13/1 ,t 

SHANNON-HHS-AOC-CLARK/MAD 13/1 

SHANNON-HHS-AOC-FAYEHE 13/14 

SHANNON-HHS-AOC-HOPKINS 13/14 

SHANNON-HHS-AOC-KNOTT/MAG13/14 

SHANNON-HHS-AOC-MCCRACKEN 13/1 

SHANNON-HHS-AOC-WARREN 13/14 

SHANNON-HHS-CLARKMADISON12/13 
SHANNON-HHS-COURT-DA VIES512/ 13 

SHANNON-HHS-COURT-FA YF!TE 12/13 

SHANNON-HHS-COURT-HARDIN 12/13 

SHANNON-HHS-COURT-SMART 12/13 

SHANNON-HHS-COURT-WARREN 12/13 

SHANNON-HHS-CRT-MCCRACKEN 1213 

SHANNON-HHS-HOPKINS <2 12/ 13 

SHANNON-HHS-KNOTT-MAGOFFIN 1213 

SHANNON-HHS-KNOX-LAUREL 12/13 

SHANNON-HHS-MUHLENBERG 12/13 

SHANNON-HHS-STATEWIDE 12/ 13 

Passed through Louisville Metro Government 

JUDD-KY MEDICARE-HHS-METRO 13/ 

JUDD-HHS-CAPACITY BLDG 13/14 

Judd-KY Medicare 14/15 

JUDD-HHS-CAPACITY BLDG 12/13 

Passed through Volunteers of America of Los Angeles 

SHANNON-HHS-VOL-SAFEHAVEN 1213 

SHANNON-HHS-VOL-REENTRY 12/13 
SHANNON-HHS-VOL-EVAL 13/14 

SHANNON-HHS-VOALA-HIV 12/13 

SHANNON-HHS-VOALA-SAFE HAVEN I 
51-IANNON-HHS-VOALA-HIV 13/1'1 

To tal US Department of Health and Human Services 

Pass TI1rough Number 

452652-14-108 

452655-14-1 12 

PON2 736 1300002117 1 

PON2 736 1300002117 2 

PON2 736 1300002117 1 

PON2 135 1300001737 1 

PON2-025-1200001315 

PON2-025-1400000391 

PON2-025-11 0000001371 

PON2-025-1300002591 

PON2-025-1200002084 

PON2-025-1300001380 

PON2-025-1300001507 

PON2-025-1200001292 

PON2-025-110000001372 

PON2-025-1100001371 

PON2-025-1200000784 

201 1-DC-BX-0137 

IH79TI024174-01 

I H79TI024488-01 

11;79'n024485-01 

PON2-025-1200002084 

PON2-025-1200000785 

PON2-025-1200001314 

PON2-025-1200001315 

90MP0102-03-00 

905P0018-01 

90MP0102-04-00 

90SP0018/01 

11021268 

11022530-0 I 

11024834-0 I 

11024433 

11021268 
1102,1433 

61 

~ 

~ 

93.243 

93.658 

93.658 

93.648 

93.648 

93.658 

93.708 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 
93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.048 

93.048 

93.048 

93.048 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

Federal 

.Y_P.cndilures 

35,051 
35,051 

83,503 

6,505 

6,991 

6,951 

5,927 

109,877 

19,153 
19,153 

4 I, 180 

47,562 

14,224 
38,375 

38,938 

24,114 

40,544 

56 
42,649 

26,851 

10,993 

1,734 

7,470 

11,634 

9,568 

17,149 

13,576 

8,624 
4,379 

399.620 

17,571 

7,985 

1,170 

2,615 

29,341 

11,336 

26,444 

16,925 

5,458 

14.560 
20,357 
95,080 

688,122 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSIIT 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2014 

federal GrantorO'ass Through Gran tor/ Program or Cluster Title 

US Department of Justice 

Passed through Ky Administrative Office of the Courts 

SHANNON-DOJ-CRT-VETERANS 12/13 

Shannon-DOJ-AOC-Hardin VTC 13/ 

SI-IANNON-DOJ-AOC-PERRY 13/14 

SHANNON-DOJ-AOC-FLOYD 13/14 

SHANNON-DOJ-AOC-JEFFERSON 13/14 

Shannon-DOJ-AOC-Conf. Eva!. 13 

Pass ed through KY Justice & Public Safety Cabinet 

WILBURN-DOJ-RESPONSE 13 

WILBURN-DOJ-RESPONSE 1-1 

Total US Department o f Jus tice 

US Department o f Labor 

Direct Programs: 

WILSON-DOL-YOUTHBUILD 12/13 

Passed through Buffalo Trace Arca Devlopment District: 

REYNOLDS-TODAY'S YOU-n-I 13/14 

REYNOLDS-TODAY'S YOUTH 12/13 

Total US D epartment of Labor 

US Department of Stat e 

Direct Programs: 

MASTERSON-DOS-READING Ri'vl 121 3 

Total US Department of Stale 

US Environmental Protection Agency 

Passed through Kentucky Energy and Environm cln Cabinet: 

Pass Through Number 

2012-DC-IJX-0039 

l'ON2 025 1400000814 

PON2-025-1400000892 

2012-DC-BX-0035 

PON2-025- I 300001425 

PON2 025 14000008 I 3 

VAWA-2012-Morehead-00262 

VA W 1\-2013-Morehead-00308 

FY 14-5245 

FY 13-52•15 

McNeil-EPA-KEC-LAB 12/13 l'ON2-129-1200002196-I 

HAIGHT-TRIPLE'JT CREEK 14/17 

Passed through KY Divis ion of \·Valer. 

Haight-Triple tt Creek 08/09 

Passed lhroughTctTa Tech: 

REEDER-EPA-TT-HINKSTON CRK 14 

Total US Environmental Protection Agency 

US Geological Survey 

Direct Prog·rams: 

OKEEFE-USGS-Ccrr 12/13 

PON2 129 1400001224 I 

C999486 I -08 

C9994861-1 I 

62 

CFDA 

~ 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

93.243 

16.588 

16.588 

17.274 

17.259 

17.259 

19.7 

66.468 
66.605 

66.46 

66.46 

15.808 

illkrill. 
fu(pcnditurcs 

4,433 

1,021 

1,564 

1,554 

9,026 

814 

18,412 

9,393 

6,585 

15,978 

34,390 

399,891 

399,891 

112,369 

55 

112,424 

512,315 

28,925 

28,925 

28,925 

29,670 
1,855 

3 1,525 

129,420 

129,420 

6,200 

6,200 

167,145 

1,531 

1,531 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2014 

Fcd<:ral Grantor{Pass Through C ranto r/Program or Cluster Title 

Passed through America View, lnc 

MCM!CHAEL-USGS-AMVIEW 12/13 

Passed through University of Kentucky Research Foundation 

Pass Through Number 

AV08· KY·OJ 

HAIC HT-USGS.UKRF-WATERSJ;1m 14/ 3048108119-14-157 

Total US Geological Survey 

US SmaJI Business Administ-ration 

Passed through University of Kentucky Research Foundation: 

MORLEY-SBA-UKRF-FED 12/13 3048110108-13-160 

MORLEY-SIJA-UKRF-SBDC 13/14 30448111056-14•090 

MORLEY-SBA-UKRF·EXPORT 13 3049025096 

Total US Small Bus inesss Administration 

Total 

63 

Q:!M_ _rn!ml 

~ Expenditures 

15.815 14,155 
14,155 

15.805 398 

398 

16,084 

59.037 35,378 

59.037 109,817 

59.037 6,416 

151,61 1 

151,611 

77,746,008 



MOREHEAD ST A TE UN IVERSITY 

Notes to Schedu le of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

1. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federa l awards includes the federal grant activity of Morehead 
State University (the "University") and is presented on the accrual basis of accoun ting. The information in this 
schedule is presented in accordance w ith the requirements of 0MB Circu lar A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments and Non-profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in th is schedule may d iffer from 
amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. 

2. Federal Student Loan Programs 

Loans made by the Un iversity to eligible students under the Federa l Perkins Loan Program and federal 
student loans issued by the Federal Direct Loan Program du ri ng the year ended June 30, 2014 are summarized 
as fo llows: 

Federa l Perkins Loan Program: 
Loans d isbursed 

Federal Direct Loan Program: 
Federal Unsubsidi zed Loans 
Federal Subs id ized Loans 
Federal Plus Loans 

$ 

$ 

694,584 

30,936,371 
15,780,615 

2,143,900 

As of June 30, 2014, the University had loans ou tstand ing, in the amount of $3,587,057 with an allowance for 
doubtfu l accounts of $84,655 under the Federal Perkins Loan Program. 
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Ar-. DORTON 
DEAN DORTON ALLEN FORD. PLLC 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 

Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance 
with Govem111e11t Auditing Standards 

Members of the Board of Regents and 
Dr. Wayne D. And rews, President 

Morehead State U niversity 
Morehead, Kentucky 

Report of Independent Auditors 

We have audited, in accordance w ith the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards app licable to financial audi ts contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Morehead State University (the University) 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the University's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 24, 
2014. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the University's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial s tatements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's in ternal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the University's internal control. 

A deficiency in in terna l control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of perform ing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibili ty that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
w ill not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in interna l control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Ou r consideration of internal contro l was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be material 
weaknesses o r significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we d id not identify any 

106 W. Vine Street, Suite 600 Lexington, KY 40507 859-255-2341 phone 859-255-0125 fax 
500 W. Jefferson Street, Suite 1400 Louisville. KY 40202 • 502-589-6050 phone 502-581-9016 fax dorton.com 



Members of the Board of Regents and 
Dr. Wayne D. Andrews, President 
Page 2 

deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may 

exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about w hether the University's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, in w hich noncompliance could have a d irect and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of 
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 

Government Auditing Stnndards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
resu lts of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the enti ty's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an aud it performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Stnndnrds in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 

suitable for any other purpose. 

November 24, 2014 
Lexington, Kentucky 
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/ld\ DORTON 
DEAN DORTON ALLEN FORD, PLLC 

Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program 
and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Required by 0MB Circular A-133 

Members of the Board of Regents and 
Dr. Wayne D. Andrews, President 

Morehead State University 
Morehead, Kentucky 

Report of Independent Auditors 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have aud ited the com pliance of Morehead State University (the Univers ity) w ith the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Circular A-133, Compliance 
Supplement that could have a d irect and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2014. The University's major federal programs are identified in the summary of audi tors' results section 
of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Managemen t is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federa l programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the University's major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We cond ucted our audit of 
compliance in accordance w ith auditing standards genera lly accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States; and 0MB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations. Those standards and 0MB Circular A-133 require that we p lan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and materia l effect on a major federa l program occurred . An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence about the University's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis fo r our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audi t does not provide a legal determ ination of the University's compliance. 

Op inion on Each Major Federal Program 

ln our opinion, the University complied, in all material respects, w ith the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and materia l effect on each of its major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2014. 

106 W. Vine Street, Suite 600 Lexington, KY 40507 • 859-255-2341 phone 859-255-0125 fax 

500 W. Jefferson Street, Suite 1400 Lol1isville, KY 40202 • 502-589-6050 phone 502-581-9016 fax dorton.com 
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Dr. Wayne D. Andrews, President 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compli ance 

Management of the University is responsible fo r establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance w ith the compliance requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal 
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the University's internal conh·ol over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on comp liance 
and to test and report on internal conh·ol over compliance in accordance with 0MB Circular A-133, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do 

not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Un iversity's interna l control over compli ance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not a llow management o r employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance w ith a type of compliance requi rement of a federal program on a 
timely basis . A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a federal program w ill not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal con trol over compliance with a type of compl iance requirement of a federa l program that is less severe 
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to meri t attention by those 

charged w ith governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
deficiencies, significa nt deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We d id not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material 

weaknesses may exist that have not been identi fi ed . 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that tes ting based on the requirements of 0MB Circu lar A-133. 

Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

November 24, 2014 
Lexing ton, Kentucky 

68 



MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended June 30, 2014 

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results (under Section .S0S(d}(l) of 0MB Circular A-133): 

Financial Statements: 

a. The type of report issued on the fi nancial statemen ts: Unmodified Opinion 

b. Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weaknesses: No 
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses: None Noted 

c. Non-compliance which is material to the financial sta tements: No 

Federal A ward: 

d. Internal control over major programs: 
Material weaknesses: No 
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses: None Noted 

e. The type of report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified Opinion 

f. Any audit findings which are required to be reported under Section .510(a) of 0MB 
Circular A-133: No 

g. Major programs: 
Student Financial Aid Custer: 

Federal Pell Grant, CFDA 84.063 
Federal Work Study, CFDA 84.033 
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant, CFDA 84.007 
Federal Perkins Loan, CFDA 84.038 
Federal Direct Loan Program, CFDA 84.268 
Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher Education Grant, CFDA 84.405 

Adult Ed ucation - Bas ic Grants to States, CFDA 84.002 
Carl D. Perkins Vocational Training Center, CFDA 84.346 
Appalachian Regional Development, CFDA 23.001 
Youthbuild, CFDA 17.274 
AmeriCorps, CFDA 94.006 

h. Dollar threshold used to d istinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $327,524 

i. Auditee qualified as a low-risk audi tee: Yes 
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MOREHEAD ST A TE UNIVERSITY 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended June 30, 2014 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings (under Section .505(d)(2) of 0MB Circular A-133): 

Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards: 
None Noted 

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs (under Sectio n .505(d)(3) of 0MB Circular A-133): 

None Noted 
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